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CHAIRWOMAN SALLY TANNER:

Good morning.

This is a

hearing of the Assembly Environmental Safety and Toxic Materials
Committee.

I'm Assemblywoman Sally Tanner, and I chair the

committee.
The subject of the hearing this morning is AB 2158 by
Assemblyman Jim Costa.

The bill redefines the role of local

health officers in administering the state's drinking water laws.
Local health officers are now required to regulate
public water systems smaller than 200 service connections, the
so-called small water systems.

The bill shifts this regulatory

responsibility to the State Department of Health Services, but it
allows local health officers to become involved in drinking water
regulation if they choose to do so.
We'll be interested in two basic question during this
hearing:

First, what is the proper division of responsibility

between the State Department of Health Services and local health
officers?

Second, how should state and county drinking water

programs be funded?
It appears that many small water systems in California,·
perhaps more than 40%, do not comply with the drinking water
requirements adopt

the f

and state governments.

this hearing will shed some light on why the rate of
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I hope

non-compliance is so high and what we need to do to provide safer
drinking water to the citizens of the state that are served by
small water systems.
Mr. Costa, do you have a statement that you would like
to make?
ASSEMBLYM~N

JIM COSTA:

Yes, I do.

Madam Chairperson and members of the committee, I wish
to first of all thank you for holding this hearing today.
During the discussions earlier in the year on my
legislation and some relat

legislation, it was indicated by you

that you were very concerned about the issue, that you realized
that there were some inequities that were taking place, and that
there were some other matters that were taking place at the
federal level that we were following as well, and you felt that it
was important that we gather all the facts before determining what
course of action we want to take here in California.
I believe that we do have a serious problem as it
relates to drinking water standards, and many parts of California
that don't have the benefit of large incorporated water districts
that are big enough in size to deal with the diversity of water
quality problems that we are now seeing.

Whether you live in Los

Angeles or whether you live in the Bay Area, those large,
primarily urban types of water districts have the sort of staff,
they have the sort of expertise, and while we're all limited by
the funding process, because of their size, they have more

resources available to them than many of the small water
districts, especially the private water companies that serve many
of the areas of rural California

What we see, as I indicated

earlier to the committee when my bill was, at that time, before
the committee, is an inadequate monitoring and enforcement of
drinking water standar
I think we have a dual system today in California of
water delivery.

In this year's budget analysis, our legislative

analyst points out that the information from the Department of
Health Services shows that 40%, 40% of the small public water
systems have major violations

drinking water standards.

I

believe that's significant
Counties are unable to keep up with the demands of these
small public water systems due to the lack of funding,
unavailability of staff a

technical expertise, and I think

that's what I'm tryi

int out to you in terms of the dual

to

system.
On the aver

re is less than one person per county

charged with enforcement in these small systems, and that's truly
inadequate.

We had a situat

just within the last six weeks in

Tulare County where a small water district in Mr. Jones' area, or
I believe Mr. Har

's area, had some serious problems, but the

county of Tulare, frankly, didn't have the resources to provide
the monitoring, and as a result the water had to be shut off, and
they've had to prov

an alternat
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source, and they're just now

trying to come to grips

th that.

But that really is the tip of the iceberg.

There are

major violations, as the legislative analyst indicated, in 40% of
those small water systems.

In addition, there is a funding

inequity for counties which monitor and enforce small water
systems.
The source of funding for regulation of small water
systems consists of local general fund moneys and fee revenue, and
we all kno\v the plight of distressed counties in which this
happens to coincide in terms of where the problems exist.
For large water systems, the costs of regulation are
borne by the state's general fund, and given the lack of technical
expertise and the funding capability of many of the small water
systems, I think a change is necessary in that funding process.
My measure of this year, AB 2158, we thought would attempt to
address that change in

ing mechanism by doing two things:

First, it authorizes the state to monitor and enforce public water
systems, and second, it authorizes the Department of Health
Services to impose

es on all water systems to support its

monitoring and enforcement activities.

We think this is

equitable.
I unders

that a task force of county environmental

health directors has examined many of the topics planned for
today's discussion.

I look forward to their testimony.

force has made recommendations which we could use.
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The task

We can amend

my bill, if that is the pleasure of the chairperson, and I would
encourage the efforts of the task force as well as any other
groups which could help develop solutions to monitoring and
enforcement of small water systems.
Madam Chair, I have spoken more than I intended to, but
I wanted to lay that out.

I wanted to thank you for taking your

time and the time of your staff, whom I've always enjoyed working
with, because I do believe that this is an issue we need to deal
with.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
appears that we have a pret

I agree with you totally, and it
good consensus among the people who

are going to be speaking today, and I'm hoping that we can amend
your bill to make it really work for the small water systems and
make it much more of an equitable situation.
Our first witnesses will be Carol Bingham and Rob Eggle,
who are from the Legislative Analyst's Office, and they'll present
the report that they did on small water systems.
Carol, Rob?
MR. ROB EGGLE:
name is Rob Eggle.

Good morning, Madam Chair, members.

My

I'm with the Legislative Analyst's Office.

You've asked us to address six specific questions
related to the safe drinking water program and to the provisions
of AB 2158.

We'd like to take your questions slightly out of

order, providing you with an overview of our findings in relation
to the regulation of small drinking water systems and then
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addressing the specific questions on AB 2158.
In 1974 Congress enacted the Safe Drinking Water Act and
directed the Environmental Protection Agency to regulate water
systems nationwide.

The Act, however, allows states to regulate

their own water systems instead of the EPA if the state laws or
regulations are at least as stringent as the federal act.
In 1976 California adopted its own Safe Drinking Water
Act.

It was granted primacy.

Under California law, the

Department of Health Services is responsible for regulating large
water systems, that is, systems with 200 connections or more, and
counties are responsible for regulating small water systems, those
with less than 200 connections.
Our review of the safe drinking water program indicates
that county programs currently implemented do not adequately
regulate small drinking water systems.

At the time of our

analysis last January, the Department of Health Services indicated
that 40% of small drinking water systems have had major violations
of drinking water r

irements.

We now understand from the

department that the rate of noncompliance is even higher than
first projected.

Noncompliance with state drinking water

requirements can result in immediate health effects such as
stomach ailments, dysentery, and Hepatitis A and long-terms health
effects such as cancer.
In addition, the number of systems that are in violation
of drinking water r

irements is likely to increase in the
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future.

This is for two reasons:
First, in 1986 Congress amended the Safe Drinking Water

Act to require EPA to adopt additional drinking water requirements
for up to 83 chemical substances.

As of last January, EPA had

adopted standards for only 20 chemical substances.
In addition, the '86 requirements require all drinking
water systems that use surface water to install treatment
facilities.

Currently, water systems are required to install

treatment facilities only if the bacteriological standard is
violated or if the source of drinking water is exposed to
significant recreational use or sewage contamination.

As new

requirements are adopted, many water systems will have additional
costs to comply with the standards.
We have found four major reasons for the high rate of
noncompliance wi

drinking water requirements.

First, coun
inadequate.

oversight and enforcement appears to be

Although counties have primary enforcement authority

for small drinki

water

terns, according to the Department of

Health Services, counties often do not review monitoring data to

•

determine if there are water quality problems or routinely verify
that water quality is actually monitored.

Counties often do not

issue new or revised permits, rarely conduct on-site inspections,
and seldom take enforcement actions.

This lack of county

implementation appears to result from inadequate county funding
and a lack of political and communi
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support.

A second reason for the high rate of noncompliance is
the lack of state oversight and enforcement.

The Department of

Health Services does not oversee county programs to ensure that
the counties are implementing the programs in accordance with
state regulations, and they do not step in when counties fail to
take enforcement action.

In terms of oversight, the Department of

Health Services indicates that state law does not authorize it to
monitor county programs or require counties to make improvements.
In terms of enforcement, it has been DHS's policy to defer to
counties for all small drinking water system enforcement, and
therefore DHS has never taken any enforcement action against a
smaller water system.
A third reason

r the high rate of noncompliance is

that the costs of compliance are high.
water requirements have

Compliance with drinking

en more difficult for small water

systems than for large ones because small water systems don't have
as many connections over which to spread the costs.

We estimate

that the cost to develop a new surface water treatment facility
can be as high as $7,000 per connection.

In addition, small water

systems have difficulty in obtaining loans.

Although the state

drinking water bond program has provided $350 million in loans and
grants primarily to small drinking water systems for capital
improvements, the number of applicants seeking bond funds far
exceeds the amount of funds available.
fund requests totaled $826

llion.
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For example, the 1984 bond

However, only $75 million

were available.
The fourth reason for the high rate of noncompliance is
a lack of water treatment operator expertise.

The Department of

Health Services is responsible for certifying water treatment
operators.

We have found three problems with the current

certification program.

First, the Department of Health Services

has not updated minimum qualifications and exams to reflect water
treatment operations related to chemical contamination of drinking
water.

Second, Department of Health Services does not require

operators to be re-tested or meet continuing education
requirements to renew their certificates, and third, the size of a
system does not necessarily reflect the complexity of the
treatment process.

Operator education and training requirements

are greater for larger systems than for smaller ones.

Therefore,

smaller quantity systems which have complex treatment facilities
may not have operators with adequate expertise to ensure Safe
Drinking Water Act compliance.
In order to

rove small drinking water systems'

compliance with drinking water requirements, we have three major

•

recommendations:
First, increase the ability of water systems to pay for
drinking water requirements.

One major way in which this can be

accomplished is to promote consolidation of existing systems
because there are economies of scale in constructing and operating
a water system.

We r

enactment of legislation requiring
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the counties, as part of their local regulatory programs, to
develop consolidation plans where consolidation appears
geographically possible.
We recommend that DHS be required to evaluate and revise
any state drinking water bond policies that discourage rather than
promote consolidation, and we recommend that counties be required
to submit their consolidation plans at the time of application for
loans and grants.
In addition, in order to reduce the number of new small
water systems that are unable to pay for improvements, we
recommended in our analysis legislation requiring new facilities
to demonstrate financial responsibility.

This has already been

addressed in Chapter 576, Statutes of 1989, which requires new
facilities to demonstrate financial responsibility as a condition
of receiving a permit for operating a system.
Our second recommendation to improve compliance is to
increase oversight and enforcement by the Department of Health
Services and the counties.

For the department we recommend

enactment of legislation requiring the department to establish
minimum county requirements such as conducting inspections with a
specified frequency and taki
specified time-frame.

en

rcement actions within a

We recommend that the Department be

required to oversee county programs to ensure that they implement
adequate regulatory programs and to take enforcement actions if a
county fails to meet minimum requirements.
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In terms of increasing county oversight and enforcement,
1

we recommend enactment

islation requiring counties to impose

fees on water systems in
costs.

We

ir jurisdictions to recover their

that county funding appears to be

insufficient to implement a small drinking water system that meets
both federal and state laws,

the funding arrangements between
counties are inconsistent.

counties and between the state a

For counties to adequately implement a small drinking
latory program, the Department of Health Services

water system r

has a preliminary estimate that 70 positions in addition to the
existing 44 positions would be needed to regulate small drinking
water systems.

We estimate that the costs of the additional 70

positions would be approximately $4.2 million.
program costs are

rox

In addit

$1.8 million.

, we est

Services would pr
programs.

te

te that the Department of Health
less

$500,000 to oversee county

In order to cover these costs, we recommend enactment

of legislation r

ri

counties to impose fees on water systems

under their jurisdiction to cover
In addition, we have
counties current

e

ir costs.
nd t

t although a majority of

on fees to cover their costs, the

Department of Health Ser ices relies entire
and federal funds to
systems.

Currently, the

on the General

its costs of regulating large water

In order to more equitably fund regulation of drinking

water systems, we r

enac
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legislation requiring the

Department of Health Services to impose fees in order to cover its
costs.

This would result in a $4 million General Fund savings.
Our final recommendation is to increase the knowledge of

water treatment operators.

We recommend enactment of legislation

requiring the Department of Health Services to revise existing
regulations concerning water treatment operation certification
requirements to ensure that the operators have the necessary
expertise to operate water treatment facilities.

Specifically, we

recommend enactment of legislation requiring the Department of
Health Services to adopt regulations to revise the minimum
qualifications for certification of water treatment operators,
requiring the operators to reapply and be re-tested periodically
and requiring increased qualifications for operation of complex
treatment facilities.
This ends our overview
systems.

the small drinking water

We can either go on to the specific questions related to

AB 2158 or answer any questions.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
Okay.

Any questions, members?

Continue.

MR. EGGLE:

You've asked us to address two major

questions related to AB 2158.

AB 2158 would shift from the

counties to the department the responsibility for regulating small
water systems and make the department primarily responsible for
regulating all water systems in the state.

Counties, however,

would be allowed to voluntarily assume responsibility for
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regulating any portion or all of the water systems, both large and
small.

In addition, each county would be allowed to select the

provisions of law which it wants to enforce.
The Department would be responsible for enforcing any
provisions not enforced by the counties.

AB 2158 also would allow

counties to collect fees to cover their costs and would require
the department to collect fees where fees are not collected by the

•

counties.

Revenue from the fees would be continuously

appropriated to the department to cover state and local costs of
implementing the safe drinking water program.
You've asked us to address two specific questions
related to AB 2158.

First, you asked how workable was AB 2158.

How likely is it that the bill will result in a rational division
of responsibility between the counties and the state, and is it
possible that the bill will create a situation where the state and
locals will reverse roles, that is, where the state will be
responsible for regulating small systems and the counties will
regulate

rge systems?
The provisions of AB 2158 are likely to create a

situation where the division of responsibility between the state
and locals will vary from county to county.

To the extent that

this occurs, the division of responsibility would not be rational.
That is, there would be no particular basis other than the desire
of the county for the divis

of responsibility between the state

and counties.
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In terms of the question of whether it's possible that
AB 2158 will create a situation where the state and locals will
reverse roles, it's certainly possible, but we have no analytical
basis to project whether that is likely to occur.
Second, you asked whether the responsibility for
regulating small water systems should be transferred to the state
as per AB 2158.

As we indicated in our recommendations, we

believe that the Department of Health Services needs to take a
bigger role in ensuring that small water systems are meeting
drinking water requirements.
You have two options to accomplish this:

Transfer

responsibility for the program to the state as proposed in AB 2158
or maintain the program as a local responsibility but increase
state oversight of the local program.

We do not have any

analytical basis for choosing one over the other.

In our analysis

we chose the latter because we didn't see any compelling reason
for taking responsibility away from counties entirely.
We are happy to answer any questions.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Increasing oversight isn't really

all the answer, because if the small counties are underfunded they
can't afford the expertise.
is required.

They can't afford to do the job that

So oversight is fine but that certainly doesn't

sound adequate to me.
MR. EGGLE:

We didn't mean to belittle the other

recommendations that we had made.
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We're addressing the specific

question of whether the state should adopt full responsibility or
maintain some responsibility with

whether the locals s

increased state oversight to make sure they're implementing the
program along with the other recommendations.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Costa.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Well, I think the point that the

chairperson raises is the heart of the issue.

In terms of your

analysis, increasing oversight isn't going to accomplish anything
for those entities that don't have the resources to provide the
oversight in the first place.

So, I mean, we can make

requirements here, but you can't get, as the proverbial saying
goes, you can't get blood out

a turnip, and the fact of the

matter is that if we want to increase the oversight, it seems to
me that we've got to do one of two things:
provide t

counties specifically

job and specifically

ide t

We've either got to

th the resources to do that
money for those purposes, or

we've got to take over that job, but we can't expect that by
passing some sort of a

here in California that says now the

counties are going to

to do these additional

responsibilities, whi

I su

t

in many cases they're certainly

willing to do -- If the counties don't have the resources to do
it, they're not goi

to

able to do it.

They'll start.

They'll try to make a good faith effort to comply, and they'll do,
you know, one or two a
it up on a priori

r, whatever they have the ability
is like a lot
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other things.

set

MR. EGGLE:

Again, one of our recommendations was to

increase the -- to require the counties to adopt fees on the water
facilities, small water facilities, in order to cover their costs.
So that is part of -ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Increasing the fees, I think, is a

logical means to address that.
Let me ask you one other question.

I'm sure the

Department of Health Services will tell us the answer, but in your
view, do they have the capability of spreading resources that they
already have further to take in the aspects of this job, and to
what degree could they do that with the current resources they
have available to them?
MS. CAROL BINGHAM:

Carol Bingham from the analyst's

office.
I think your question is, does the Department of Health
Services, are they able to absorb it, or are you talking about the
counties?
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

No.

I'm talking about Health

Services.
MS. BINGHAM:

Okay.

We estimated in our analysis that

the Department of Health Services may need up to an additional
$500,000 to take over the responsibilities that we had identified.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

And they could do it on -- with the

same sort of scrutiny and integrity that they now do with the
large systems?
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MS. BINGHAM:

Well, that would assume a larger county

role.
MR. EGGLE:

Mr. Costa, to clarify, your question was

related to AB 2158, and is your question whether the Department of
Health Services could take over regulation of small water systems
without any increased resources?
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

That's my question, basically, and

if they need additional resources, how much would they need?
MR. EGGLE:

We don't have an answer to that.

We could

try and provide you with one at a later time, but we haven't done
a review of that.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Who's most familiar with Health

Services' budget, you or Carol?
MS. BINGHAM:

Well, I've been analyzing Health Services'

budget for ten years now in this particular area, but at this
point I'm a little further away from the detailed program
knowledge.

Our per5on who initially prepared this analysis is out

on maternity leave ri

t now so we're trying to cover.

We can get

back to you with an answer on that.
It certainly is clear that the -- I believe, based on my
experience with their budget, that they would need more staff to
take over.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MS. BINGHAM:
ASSEMBLYMAN

But they have the expertise?

I believe they have the expertise.
they basically do this function
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for larger water systems already?
MS. BINGHAM:

That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

So it would be simply a matter of

determining, with the additional water districts that would come
under their jurisdiction, how many PY years they would need to
provide that?
MS. BINGHAM:

Yeah.

You wouldn't have any significant

economies of scale with this program because you're talking about
people being out in a lot of rural areas, and it takes a long time
to travel from one place to another.

So you're talking about a

lot of field offices, and you wouldn't really have any savings by
having it be that way.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

I don't have any preconceived

notions about whether it's better that DHS does it or whether it's
better that the counties do it in terms of the small water
districts.

Whatever works is what I think we ought to -- Whatever

works in terms of economies of scale, most efficiently, is what I
would prefer to do, but I know that giving the counties more
oversight, or telling them to do more without some resources,
isn't going to get the job done.
MS. BINGHAM: Right.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

We certainly would agree with that.
I'm concerned also.

You know, the increase in fees for the small systems,
would that mean that the consumers would be paying a great deal
more for their water than consumers in the larger systems?
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That's

a real problem, and I feel that we have to concern ourselves with
that problem because there are, you know, a number of small water
systems in the state, and that really could be a very serious
problem.
How would it affect the consumer?

That's what I'm

concerned with.
MR. EGGLE:

I

In our analysis we estimated that the

increased costs for larger systems, and again, one of our
recommendations is to shift the funding from the larger systems
from the current General Fund, federal fund, to a fee system -We estimated that the annual cost per water user would be about 35
cents for the large.

For the small --

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. EGGLE:

That's for the large or the small?

For large.

For the small, we estimated that

the annual cost -ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

I

You say 35 cents?

35 cents per

what?
MR. EGGLE:

Per water user.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. EGGLE:

Annually?

Annually.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. EGGLE:

Okay.

Yes.

I'm trying to-- you know-Annually, and for the smaller systems

we estimated that the annual cost per user would again be about
$10.

So again, it would be quite a bit more than the larger

system but not a

ral

--We didn't feel that it was an
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unreasonable burden.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

You don't feel it's an unreasonable

burden because it's not that much more to pay, or you don't feel
that there's an inequity that exists if you have larger users
paying a smaller figure?
MR. EGGLE:

No.

We were only referring to, that $10 is

not an unreasonable burden on a water user.

It was not referring

to the inequity between the larger system and the smaller system.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Are there any federal funds that we

use to pay for part of this service?
MR. EGGLE:

The Department of Health Services gets about

$2.2 million annually from the federal government which is used
for the large systems.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

So, there really is an inequity

there.
I mean, unless -- I'm not trying to portray good guys
and bad guys, but the way the system's been created, if you have a
large system you have advantages that you don't have if you have
-- if you're in a smaller water system; right?
MR. EGGLE:

That's right, and particularly true under

the current system where the large water systems don't pay any
fees.

They are General Fund supported and federal fund supported.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Plus they get the federal funds that

go to DHS to do their monitoring, correct?
You just told me --
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MR. EGGLE:

That's right.

That's right.

Yes, that's

correct.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Larger water systems -- Large

systems users, then, have water that is monitored by -- There is
enforcement.

They pay less.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

The consumer pays less.

It does --

Well, and part of it's paid for by

the federal government, part of the monitoring program .

•

Is that money they get from -- Is it from EPA that you
say they get the money from?
MR. EGGLE:

I believe it is from EPA.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

We'll be hearing from EPA.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Yeah.

Then does that cover the

entire cost of the monitoring program?
MR. EGGLE:

No.

The remaining costs in the whole

regulatory program for the

rge systems is paid from the General

Fund, and that's about $4 million.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

So the total cost is about $6

million plus?
MR . EGGLE:

•

That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Of which the feds kick in $2 million

plus?
MR. EGGLE:

That's correct.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Frizzelle.

ASSEMBLYMAN NOLAN FRIZZELLE:
in context for my own

I want to kind of put this

rstanding, and my constituency, of
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course, are large volume users.
So we're really talking about local, more rural
communities, and according to this analysis, it's about 2% of the
population, and are we talking here about not a tax but a fee
that's added to the people who are -- that 2% of the population,
or are you thinking in terms of fees on the whole, a cross-section
of water users, to pay for the rural community monitoring.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

I think his suggestion was the fee

would be on just the small water users, and that's why it was $10.
Did I understand you correctly?
MR. EGGLE:

Our recommendation is for fees on the large

water systems to cover the costs of monitoring and enforcing the
large water systems and also
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

That turned out to be about 35 cents

for that?
MR. EGGLE:

That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

That's to pay that $4 million

difference.
MR. EGGLE:

That's correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Okay.

And then to do the same for

the small water districts, they'd have to pay $10 million to
establish what they currently don't have today?
MR. EGGL.-=-':

Ten dollars.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. EGGLE:

Ten dollars per user?

Yes.
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ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

One of the things that is of

some concern, obviously, is the fact that some counties are more
able to do this monitoring than others.

Some community health

services are more adequate than others.

The cost factors are

greater in some communities than others.
Southern California, generally speaking, has a great
deal more to pay for the water in the first place, and I'm
wondering how much of the additional costs those people ought to
have to pay in order to monitor the water to the communities that
basically pay less for the water in the first place.
There seems to be several different inequities that you
can finger in this circumstance.

It does seem appropriate that

the monitoring, obviously, be done.
the state oversee and provide it.

The feds have mandated that
If the state's going to oversee

and provide it, whether they actually do it or mandate it to the
counties, the costs of it, I think, ought to be borne by the
people, essentially, who are in the more rural communities.

Just

like in telephone service or any other kind of service, they tend
to have to pay a little bit more per individual for the very fact
there are fewer individuals in their universe to share the costs
among, and I think that the policy decision that the Legislature
has to make is which -- where is fairness here?

Where is the

inadequate funding going to be shouldered, and I would have to
In behalf of our people in Southern California, who already pay
what I think is a grossly inequitable price for water, I would be
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reluctant to add anything to their costs that already exist.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

The thing that we have a

responsibility to do and to see to is that the consumer, wherever
he or she is, has the opportunity to drink clean water.
ASSEMBLYl~N

FRIZZELLE:

I grant that's the case, and

that's what the feds have mandated, and-CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

And that's a state responsibility,

and so -ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

State responsibility, but where

we pluck the money from, it seems to me, is the question at hand.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Yeah.

And General Fund money is

actually money that is provided -ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:
CHAIRWOMAN 'l'ANNER:

By everybody.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:
adding costs to the actual

By everybody.
So that --

But here we're talking about

livery of water in order to recoup

that amount of money, and I wonder whether that is as equitable as
it sounds at first blush.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I'm going to have us move right

along.
I think that takes care of your testimony, and we
appreciate your being here, and I think you filled in very well.
Thank you.
Our next witness is Harry Seraydarian, who is the
Director of the Water Management Division for the Environmental

-24-

Protection Agency, Region 9, and he will give us EPA's analysis of
why the present structure of California law, where the department
enforces the large water systems, and the small water systems go
to the local health departments, and I think he'll give us an
idea, maybe, where we can be put straight.
MR. STEVE PARDIECK:
Pardieck.

I

I

here today.

Madam Chairperson, I'm Steve

apologize for Harry Seraydarian.
He would have liked to be here.

He was unable to be
He asked me to sit

in.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

When I looked up I realized that you

are not Harry Seraydarian.
MR. PARDIECK:

He was called to that other capitol on

the Potomac back East somewhere to deal with the San Diego issue.
So he would have liked to have been here.
Thank you very much
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. PARDIECK:

Pardieck.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. PARDIECK:

•

Pardieck, you said?

Pardieck?

P-A-R-D-I-E-C-K.

Okay.

Thank you very much for the invitation to

be here today .
I'd like to touch on three main points related to the
problem of small water systems.
One point is basically the legal authority question and
EPA recommendations on the current law.
I'd like to touch, secondly, on the resource needs that
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you've touched on here and our support for some additional revenue
to build the state capacity.
And thirdly, I'd like to touch on delegation to the
counties if the state so chooses to delegate.

Some of our

suggestions or observations in that regard.
This committee has requested EPA's view on four
questions, namely what are EPA requirements for delegating to a
state?

What are the problems with the current law?

Thirdly, what

are recommended changes in the law as we would see it, and any
thoughts we might have on AB 2158.
I'd like to begin my remarks on the basis that I believe
that there's a general agreement, or recognition, among the
Legislative Analyst, Department of Health Services, and EPA that
there is a problem.

A problem does exist with the present

statutory authority, and it's not adequate to meet the minimum
primacy requirements.
In this regard, we see three parts to the problem.
Number one, the state does not have the adequate legal authority
to require that the counties adopt and implement a local
regulatory program that meets minimum requirements under the Safe
Drinking Water Act.

That's Number One.

Number two is, the state does not have the adequate
authority to take over and implement a county's regulatory program
if and when a county fails to do so.
And thirdly, the state does not have the adequate legal
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authority to directly enforce against small systems, those systems
under 200 connections, when a county fails to do so.
In order for the State of California to retain
delegation of the program, there is a variety of requirements that
you might expect EPA would have.

I would only touch on a couple

of those as they relate to the main issue here, and there are
basically two.
One, the state must have adopted drinking water
regulations that are no less stringent than the national primary
drinking water regulations.
And two, the state must have adopted and be implementing
adequate procedures for the enforcement of those regulations, and
these procedures include the statutory or regulatory enforcement
authority, adequate to ensure compliance with the state's primary
drinking water regulations, and this authority must apply to all
public water systems in the state covered under the regulations,
regardless of size, down to 15 connections.

It includes other

requirements like right of entry, authority to require suppliers
to sample and analyze water and to keep appropriate records and to

•

report to the state, other requirements on the ability to sue in
court and assess penalties and so forth, all coming back to the
overall enforcement authority question.
In terms of EPA's recommendation on what changes we
would make to California law in order for the state to retain
primary enforcement responsibility.

-27-

Incidentally, we have done a

legal review and directed a letter to Dr. Kaiser at the Department
of Health Services that I assume you have on file or the committee
staff has?

Okay.

Otherwise, we could provide additional copies

of that letter later on.

Okay.

Our response to this question, really, can go two ways.
It depends on whether the state chooses to delegate or whether it
chooses not to delegate.

If the state chooses not to delegate,

basically the problem is to centralize the state drinking water
program within the Department of Health Services and eliminate
references to the local health department authority for systems
with less than 200 connections, and that would basically fix the
legal problem, but if the state chooses to delegate to the
counties, and we're pretty much assuming that there would be some
level of delegation in the future, there's two fundamental changes
that we would suggest.
Number one is that the Department of Health Services'
delegation to the counties should be structured in such a way that
all the department of Health Services obligations to meet the
primacy requirements should also be statutory obligations of those
counties charged with administering all or part of the program.
In other words, give the county the same authority as you have
given to the state.
Secondly, in the event that the local health officials
fail to meet their statutory obligations, the statute should
expressly authorize the Department of Health Services to implement
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the program in the county or increase its direct oversight,
including taking direct enforcement actions as appropriate.
Basically, this part is directed at an oversight mechanism or a
control or accountability factor and recognizing the Department of
Health Services would retain pretty much the ultimate
responsibility of the program, even if delegated.
I think that answers two or three of the questions

•

related to the problem of the federal law.
Regarding AB 2158, we didn't do a hard legal review, but
we looked at it briefly, and regarding its effect on the primacy
status, AB 2158 does not address the issues that I've been talking
to, that EPA pursues on delegation. The main difference from the
current law is that the bill permits instead of requires.
Basically it permits the local health officers to administer the
county drinking water programs and eliminates the small system
concept.
Our review of the proposed bill indicates that it does
not provide an increase in state authority or oversight of any
potentially inadequate county programs.

Therefore, simply from a

legal point of view, it does not address the primacy issues with
which EPA is concerned.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. PARDIECK:
recoromendations a
have some r

Do you think it should?

Some legislation should, yeah, and the
legal review

t we've given Dr. Kaiser

tions in there on how to fix the law.
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To this point I've only been looking at the authority
and accountability issues to satisfy EPA, basically, and the
changes as addressed will fix the legal problems, but it really
won't fix the problem unless the program is properly

ernented.

The problem is, as you all observed, you have a large number of
small water systems with a disproportionately large number of
violations and level of noncompliance with the current programs,
with the current requirements, to say nothing of future
requirements.
The Legislative Analyst's report provides a very
comprehensive and accurate description of California's program and
the issues surrounding the small

tern noncompliance,

concur very much with this assessment.

we

It was a good job.

To address, or to fully implement as a total program, to
give attention to all water systems statewide down to the
smallest, we suggest you not only need to modi

law to

address the authority question but you need to recognize that
there is a shortfall of resources, and for a complete solution we
suggest that the Legislature develop some

rm of alternative

funding mechanism to significantly increase the level of revenues,
or the resources, associated with the program.

Congress is not

likely to appropriate adequate levels for the state to implement
the Safe Drinking Water Act.

There may be some small increase

corning this year or maybe next fiscal year, but it won't meet the
total needs of the state, and we can say that
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r practically

every state nationwide.

It doesn't even meet the current needs.

So we suggest to the committee, to build a state program capacity
the state should look seriously at other revenue sources, some
form of a fee structure for example, or whatever, to get more
resources to deal with the small systems problem.
Our last point deals with delegation, and if the state
so chooses to pursue that route of delegating to the county at
some level, we would have a couple of suggestions to provide for
your institutional framework to make that work.

If you delegate,

and how you delegate is basically a state decision.
you.

Our program allows for delegation.

That's up to

With a large number of

systems, a large number of small systems statewide, there can be
some efficiency there to delegate to the local level.

A number of

other states do have delegated programs, and we'd be happy to
provide as much information as we have on what those programs are
like and if they're working or not, but basically, given that you
would have the legal authority to do it and for delegation to
work, obviously, there has to be adequate resources to go along
with that delegation.

You can't just give them a responsibility

without the associated resources.

We would suggest you have some

formal agreements or subagreements to define what the minimum
program would be.

I think you need consistency, some uniformity

statewide for the implementation of the state policies and
standards.
We would suggest you have some form of shared or
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standardized data management system.

After all, the Department of

Health Services is ultimately responsible for the program.
who EPA would look to to see if it's working statewide.
not oversight counties per se.

That's

We would

So they need a good data system to

know what's going on.
The last observation on delegation would be something
like the state would have to let go.

They would need to retain

oversight to look at performance, certainly.

In large measure,

the day-to-day decisions would have to be at the county level.

So

once again, if delegation is chosen we'd be happy to provide you
with some facts or figures from other state programs.
In closing, our objectives here, and I believe they're
the same as the state's, would be to maintain primacy, maintain a
strong program at the state level, keep the program delegated
within California.

I think that's in the best interest of the

public and the state and for EPA.
Secondly, our objective would be to help you increase
resources to go into the program to reduce the shortfall that
exists now and to support, continue to support, some quality
program on a statewide basis, and lastly, and I guess the bottom
line, is to meet the ultimate goal, ensure public health
protection to all the citizens in this state that drink the water.
We would want to improve the compliance with drinking water
standards at the small water systems level.
Thank you very much.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I have a question.

If the state decides that they didn't choose to have
primacy and it would be then left up to EPA, how would the funding
be worked out?

EPA would then

It would be up to EPA to do all

of those things that the state does now, and the locals should and
can't do now, but it would be up to the federal government to do

•

that; is that right?
MR. PARDIECK:

Basically, that's correct.

The $2.2 million that you heard referred to earlier
would be pretty much converted to contract funds.

We would try to

have a few additional people to manage the program, but there's no
way we could ever come up to the point of running the program like
they do in California.

Yes, we would start a process to withdraw

delegation, and we wouldn't do as well as the state does, and we
would hope that it wouldn't come to that.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You would have to increase the

funding somehow?
MR. PARDIECK:

Yeah.

The state would no longer receive

the $2 million, approximately, a year that it's receiving from
EPA, and it would be converted to our own contract support to
somehow do some bare minimum work.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Calderon has a question.

ASSEMBLYMAN CHARLES M. CALDERON:

I mean, if you're to

revoke the state's permit, the federal government would be doing a
worse job than the state's doing now?
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CHAIRMAN TANNER:

Would you use your mike?

ASSEMBLYMAN CALDERON:

Oh, I'm sorry.

The Chairman actually just touched on a threshold
question.

If the federal government were to revoke the state's

permit, the federal government would be doing a worse job than the
state is doing right now.

The federal government would be

required to come up with funds for monitoring, and if the federal
government's action with respect to revoking the state's permit
relative to hazardous waste management in California is any
example, probably it would be a long time and a long process
before the federal government would even revoke the state's permit
with respect to regulation of drinking water supplies.
So although you provide real, I think, valuable
expertise and information with respect to how we can make a
program better, I think that's something the federal government
can do, this is about all the help that we get out of the federal
government in terms of trying to satisfy or trying to meet those
requirements.
MR. PARDIECK:

Yeah.

ASSEMBLYMAN CALDERON:

Before you asked the question, I

was just thinking, what difference does it make whether the EPA
thinks that we meet standards or not, other than we all try to
follow the federal system and the state system as a practical
matter?

What difference does it make?
MR. PARDIECK:

Well, you'd still want a drinking water
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program in the state.

I think the public demands that.

There

would be a dual level of regulation and oversight and duplication
and confusion for the utilities, not knowing who they're regulated
by, the state or EPA.
I would like to provide one point of clarification on
the $2 million, approximately, that is granted to the state each
year.

That money is not used for monitoring or sampling at the

large water systems, to the best of my knowledge.

It goes towards

program management, administration, plans and specifications
review, data systems, enforcement, and a variety of things
connected with the overall management of the program, but the EPA
money,

~

se, does not go to a utility, or that is not -- The

state does not monitor the water, analyze the water, for the large
utilities to the best of my knowledge.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So that is used for administration

purposes?
MR. PARDIECK:

Basically.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. PARDIECK:

That's right.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. PARDIECK:

But only with the large systems?

Why is that?

Well, that's a state choice.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It's up to the state to make that --

I see.
MR. PARDIECK:

That's how the law has developed, and

it's how it has been administered to date.
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Historically that's where all the attention was placed,
where all the people were, and it's only now that we're getting to
the point of recognizing that there's other problems out there.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Is that two and a half million

dollars -- Is it required that the money be used for
administration rather than for any of the other parts of the
program?
MR. PARDIECK:

Well, it goes to -- There's a variety of

elements that the funding could support including, like I
mentioned, data management, enforcement efforts.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. PARDIECK:

Monitoring?

There could be, in some special

situations, some small systems if they cannot, or choose not to,
monitor themselves.

Our law does allow for that, but to date none

of our funds have been used for that purpose.
self-monitoring program.

It's basically a

Utilities are required to take their own

samples and monitor their own water.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Costa.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Just kind of a follow-up on the

questions that the chairperson and then Mr. Calderon asked.
If, in fact, we are not meeting or in compliance with
the EPA requests, what are the ultimate -- I mean, obviously, we
want to have good quality water for our citizens in this state,
but what are the sanctions?

I guess I'm more interested in the

stick, in terms of our inability to come into compliance, and how
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severe you think the problem is in scope with other problems that
you're dealing with.

I mean, how punitive can EPA get with the

state?
MR. PARDIECK:

Only in terms of the money that is

afforded the state now would be withheld from the state.
So you're only talking about --you're talking about the
$2 million that would not be given to the state to fund a portion
of their program.

There would be, under the Safe Drinking Water

Act, the federal act -- EPA would have to take over and attempt to
run the program out of San Francisco.
a duplication.

There would, once again, be

There are no sanctions.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. PARDIECK:

Yeah, but that doesn't do anything.

No.

Once again, our objective is
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

We'll cite you out of compliance.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mrs. Wright.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN CATHIE WRIGHT:

I don't necessarily -- If

the gentleman from EPA can answer the question, but it would help
with the procession of witnesses that come before us that somebody
will answer it.
In the background paper we saw that 2% of the population
is served by 4,400 of these small water agencies, small systems,
and I'm wondering if, because we're talking about the economy of
serving the water, does that mean that we have 4,400 individual
water boards, elected water boards, and is part of our problem
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that maybe some of these areas have not been consolidated for
efficiency and economy?
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Well, probably so, but that's a very

political question, you know.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I know it's a political question.

We're taking about a situation here where, from the legislative
analyst, they're saying a $10 charge.

Well, if you're talking

about 200 connections, that's only $2,000 in a system, and $2,000
isn't going to buy you very much, and I guess that's my question,
that maybe part of this whole thing should be an analysis of where
these small systems could come together.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That's one of the recommendations

made by the Leg Analyst, of course.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

I'm just wondering, thinking

about the overall cost of a water system.

Water is getting

expensive year after year.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Sure, and that has merit, and I

think that probably should be pursued, but I think you need to
understand that in some cases these are private water companies.
They don't have a board, and in some cases, these water companies
consist of a home-owners' association.

You've got 25 homes up in

a community in the foothills somewhere.

They decided to build a

cluster of homes, and the homes average in evaluation from
$15,000, $20,000, to maybe some of the nicer ones are worth
$60,000 or $70,000, and you've got an income range between people
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who are retired and people who are on assistance and maybe people
who are just making ends -There may be nothing else within fifteen, twenty miles,
you know, and that's not uncommon in some of these small ones, and
so they serve 25 families.

So who would you consolidate that

water system with?
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Maybe our next witness, Pete Rogers,

can give us some ideas.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

But as I'm listening to it, it

seems to me we say we're serving 2% of the population, and yet
4,400 systems somewhere along the line, just for economic reasons,
the people right there should be looking at consolidation, but
again, if you have an elected board -CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It's very difficult.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

It's very difficult.

That might

be part of what the state should be looking at doing.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Okay.

We will hear from the state.

Pete Rogers is Chief of the Public Water Supply Branch
for the Department of Health Services.

•

Rogers for a long time.

We've worked with Mr .

Welcome.

MR. PETE ROGERS:

Thank you.

I will be using some

overheads during my presentation, so I apologize to Ms. Wright and
Mr. Frizzelle if they have a different angle there to view them
from.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Maybe you can move over there.
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

(Inaudible).

I've been wanting you to for a long

time.
MR. ROGERS:

Okay.

As indicated, my name is Pete Rogers.

I'm Chief of the

Public Water Supply Branch for the Department of Health Services,
and we do have the responsibility for regulating public water
systems throughout the state.
I appreciate our opportunity to present these comments.
What I would like to try to do today is help describe in terms of
dimensions the extent of the problem and the nature of the problem
and some of the reasons for noncompliance, and then we will also
attempt to address the specific questions and issues which the
committee posed to this department in their letter to Dr. Kaiser.
As you've already heard, the problem of the small
systems is both complex and certainly important, and while these
systems have been in existence for many years it's only been
relatively recently that there's been public attention called to
these particular problems, and I think as a result of those
concerns the Legislature recently has directed the department to
evaluate various aspects of the small water problem and submit two
reports to the Legislature.
The first of these reports is due January first, 1990,
and was requested in the 1989-90 Budget Act.

As part of this

report, the Legislature requested three things with respect to
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small water systems:

First, the Legislature requested an accurate

assessment of the status of compliance of small systems.

This is

something which had not previously been known, only estimated.
The Legislature also requested the department to develop and
include in the report recommended criteria which the department
deems necessary for a minimum acceptable small water system
regulatory program, and it further requested that the department
develop recommended guidelines as to the circumstances in which
the state should intervene and take direct enforcement action
against small systems under local jurisdiction which are in
violation, and this report is in the process of being prepared to
meet the January first deadline, and therefore, any comments we
make, and we will get into some of those, are preliminary at this
time.
The second report which has been requested by the
Legislature involves a much broader evaluation of public water
systems including regulations, methods of financing, and many
other factors affecting both large and small systems, and I'm
referring here to the comprehensive evaluation of drinking water
and the development of a state plan for improving drinking water
quality which is required by AB 21,
signed by the Governor.

1

bill which was recently

AB 21 requires this comprehensive state

plan to be submitted to the Legislature by July 1 in 1991, and
many, or some, of the in-depth issues that you have identified in
your letter and that are being discussed here will be addressed in
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detail in the development of that plan.
By way of background, I think it's very important
because we've heard the term and using the term "small water
systems."

I think it's important that we know what that term

means.
State statutes currently define a small water system as
any system having less than 200 service connections.

Now this is

different from the federal government's definition of a small
water system, which generally means systems having less than about
a thousand service connections, and under California law local
health officers have the responsibility for enforcing the Safe
Drinking Water Act against these small water systems.
So with that, if we could center that, going through the
types and varieties of small water systems
up a little bit, Nadine?

Yeah.

Can that be raised

All right.

We have about, roughly, a little over 10,000 systems
totally, and I think that's significant on this chart here, is
that the large water systems, which is a yellow chunk there, makes
up only 12% of the number of public water systems in California,
and that 12% of those systems serves, as you have heard, 97% of
the state's population, and the remaining 88%, or all the rest,
serve only two and a half percent of the state's population.
There's roughly a half of a percent of the state's population
that's served by private wells.
The other thing that is interesting on this chart here
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is that roughly half of the public water supplies in California
are non-community systems.

That means they don't serve residences

and they don't serve communities.

Those are things like prisons

and hospitals and schools and restaurants and camps and so forth
that serve more than 25 people and have their own water supply.
We also include in here a green section which are called "state
small systems.''

These are systems that serve between 5 and 15

service connections.
Now, the federal definition of a public water supply
only goes down to 15 service connections, but state law defines it
on down to 5 service connections, so we include almost 1,700
systems under state law which are not covered by federal law.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
to go on to another

Before you move on -- Were you going

If you address it later in your comments

then you don't have to respond now, but at some point I'd like you
to give us an understanding of what percentage of that pie that
we're talking about there -We talk about 40% of the small systems out of
compliance.
I

I'm trying to get a flavor for, from a Health

Services perspective, how serious the problem is in terms of
potential disease-related or bacteria-related

potential exists

in those water systems because we're not providing the sort of
monitoring that is necessary, and if we had the sort of monitoring
that was necessary we might be able to, through the Safe Drinking
Water programs or some of the other drinking water programs that
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we have, provide the funding to correct those problems.
I guess we're talking about a situation monitoring, but
I guess ultimately what we're really concerned about is public
health, and I guess I'd like you to paint a picture for us as to
how serious out there is the public health problem from DHS's
perspective.
MR. ROGERS:

I will do that.

I think the next three

figures will address that specifically, that point.
Okay.

Again, the problem, as we've heard earlier, is

when we talk about the small system problem I think what we're
really talking about is the noncompliance rate, and this is a
situation which we expect to become significantly worse as new
federal and state standards come into being.
As I pointed out earlier, the Legislature requested the
department to determine the current status of compliance of the
small systems, and since we did not have any accurate statewide
data on that, there's no requirement that counties report
information to the state, and some of the data bases that exist
are woefully inaccurate, therefore, in order to respond to the
Legislature's request, the department developed its information
for the report by conducting on-site surveys of approximately half
of the local health department programs throughout the state.

We

took a cross-section of counties, geographically and size-wise,
because that's in fact what we had time and resources to do, and
during those surveys, the actual lab data was reviewed and other
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information which we felt was accurate, and therefore we feel that
these results are accurate and can be used to portray stateside
status of compliance as it existed during '88, '89.
This figure is a brief summary of the results of the
compliance survey.

In these we only included those categories of

violations which in our opinion presented a significant risk to
the consumer if violations occurred.

In other words, these are

not violations where you have to drink the water over 70 years in
order to see some potential effect, but these are ones that we
felt presented an immediate risk to the consumer.
Slightly less than 3,000 water systems were included in
the survey, and a system was deemed to be out of compliance or in
violation if it violated the requirements for monitoring or the
MCL level at any time during the year, and as indicated in this
table, the estimated noncompliance rate of 40%, which previously
we mentioned, was substantially low because in almost every
category the majority of small systems were in violation of the
requirements for that category at least once during the year.
example, bacteriological, and again this is a combination of

•

monitoring violations and MCL violations, we have 57% of the
systems in violation, all the way on down through the various
contaminant categories -CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. ROGERS:

What is turbidity?

Turbidity is a measure of the surface

water, and it's a measure of the effectiveness of treatment of
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For

that surface water, meaning that there are turbidity standards
which have been set to protect against pathogenic and other
surface water organisms.

So there are requirements for monitoring

and meeting turbidity levels, but it only applies to systems that
use surface water.
Yes, sir?
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Isn't a more graphic way of

explaining it, it's what's contained within the water, whether it
be foreign objects or whether it be the cloudiness of the water or
the -MR. ROGERS:

Correct.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
MR. ROGERS:

Or the coloring of the water?

It's a measurement of the particulate

matter in the water and so forth.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

In the water when

you hold it up.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Like the water I drink at home?

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

We're not talking about the water

with a little Scotch in it.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

No, no.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

That gets a little -- The

No.

coloration, if you hold up a glass of crystal mountain water from
the Sierra has a low amount of turbidity because it doesn't have
much particulate matter, but if you get it from a -- Dos Palos,
for example, as it goes through an open canal.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Yeah, and this stuff that settles in
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the glass, and you think, "Oh, my God.
MR. ROGERS:
turbidity.

I've been drinking that."

Lake Tahoe, for example, has a low

Sacramento River has a high turbidity.

It's clarity.

On cross-connection programs, we found that 79% of the
systems did not have a cross-connection program, and that, in our
opinion, is one of the chief reasons for contamination that we
find in distribution systems as backflow from some type of

•

contaminated source.
The legislative analysts mentioned some things about
operator certification.

We found 56% of the small systems did not

have certified operators when they were required to have one.
The next figure illustrates the types of violations that
were most prevalent.

Again, the red are monitoring violations and

the yellow are actual MCL violations.
As this figure shows, the failure to monitor was far and
away the most prevalent type of violation that occurred.

We think

this is particularly significant because the whole drinking water
quality protection program is based on a concept of routine
self-sampling and analysis by the water utility to detect the
presence of contaminants, and if you're not sampling your water
and monitoring and testing it, there's just no way you can assure
that in fact it's safe when it's delivered to the consumers.
This figure merely indicates the distribution of small
water systems.

Raise that up so we can see.

All right.

The blue is the number of systems ranging in the various
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size categories between 15 and 200 service connections, and the
yellow are the number of violations,.

As we can see there, the

smaller the size of the system, the more there are and the more
violations that occur.

Percentage-wise, it's fairly consistent

throughout the different sizes of systems.
Figure 5, our next one, shows the total number of
violations that we found and distributes them according to the
type of violation, and as seen on the figure, the largest number
of violations occurred in the bacteriological quality category,
which is the red, and again, most of these were monitoring
violations from a public health perspective.
This is, in our opinion, the most significant category
because of the immediate and acute effects of pathogenic organism
contamination in drinking water and the relatively large number of
water-borne illnesses which are reported each year as compared to
the others.

If they do not take bacteriological samples of their

water, or if they find positive samples and do not, they would be
in violation of the bacteriological standard, so it's monitoring
and the standard itself.
Our January report will include a comparison of the
violation rates for all the categories between small systems and
large systems at different sizes and so forth, but in the interest
of brevity I wanted to only present here a comparison of the
bacteriological compliance categories since it represented the
largest number of violations.
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In this figure here we compared the small water system
compliance rate versus the large water system compliance rate, and
again, the small systems had a combined noncompliance rate of
about 57%.

The large systems had a combined noncompliance rate of

less than 1%.

So there is a significant difference between the

rates of compliance between the small systems and the large
systems, which we knew intuitively anyway.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

On the last chart, and the

Haven't we been able-- Don't we have methods to control bacteria?
MR. ROGERS:

Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

And we have, in our committee and in

the Legislature, have been concerning ourselves a great deal with
chemical contamination, but I'm shocked at that figure that you
showed us with the contaminants, bacteria.
MR. ROGERS:

In our opinion, the bacteriological

contamination is significantly more important for a number of
reasons:

One is that chemical contaminants for the most part

require a long-term ingestion to potentially have some impact.
You drink this for your lifetime and you may have a higher
I

potential cancer rate.

Whereas bacteriological contamination, the

gastroenteritis, hepatitis, and all those things, are immediate.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

And those things could be controlled

though?
MR. ROGERS:

Oh, yes.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Much easier than the chemical
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contaminants.
MR. ROGERS:

That's correct, and so it's of concern, and

we would share that with you.
I would like to correct a -CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Frizzelle.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

I'm concerned about one thing.

You seem to be equating monitoring with contaminants, as though
somehow or another absence of monitoring automatically means the
same rate of increasing contaminants.

That may or may not be the

case.
I can picture some circumstances where routines are
followed in general to protect the water from contaminants,
bacteriologic or otherwise, such that the regular monitoring is
considered less necessary because of protective mechanisms that
are routinely followed.

So I'm wondering to what degree that

distorts this statistic.
MR. ROGERS:

A very important point, and I don't think

we want to try to present here that all of these violations are
equal in terms of importance to public health.

We think

monitoring is important because this is the way we assure that
water is safe.

You're right.

If there is adequate treatment in

place
ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

You also insure the size of the

bureaucracy to do it.
But I'm wondering, more than anything else, are there
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methods by means of which we can routinely treat water, protect
the water in such a manner that the on-going monitoring becomes a
less significant factor?
MR. ROGERS:

I would agree if we had adequate and

reliable treatment in place in all cases it would reduce the
importance of the monitoring.
ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

Well, then, the next thing that

flows from that is, do larger systems have routinely more or
better quality control type of devices, or systems, in place than
the small ones do, such that monitoring is more significant
potentially for small systems than for large?
MR. ROGERS:

I think monitoring is more significant in

small systems than in large systems for those and other reasons.
ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

I think, Madam Chair, this is

one of the key elements of this particular discussion, is the fact
that the statistic seems to fall in the area of where the
liability or vulnerability to contaminants is greatest, in small
systems.

Large systems are generally not only funded differently

but they're protected differently and more systematically, and I
think the small systems have a higher proclivity for
contamination, and they're the ones that are monitored, the least.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Well, of course, the larger systems

have more people with expertise and are funded to take care of
to monitor and take care of those problems that might arise.
MR. ROGERS:

This is probably a good time to correct
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what I think is a misperception, and that is that all of the
approximately 1,200 large water systems that the state regulates
are in fact large systems with big staffs and a lot of technical
expertise.
That is not the case.

In fact, over half of the large

water systems regulated by the state fall within the 200 and 500
service connection range, and only about 10% or 15% of the large
systems exceed, a community of say, 30,000 people.

So you've got

10% or 15% that I would put in that category, but the bulk of
them, three-quarters of them, serve less than 2,000 or 3,000
people, and they do not have large staffs.
technical expertise.

They do not have

In fact, many of their problems are

considered comparable
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

And those systems are considered

small systems by the federal government?
MR. ROGERS:

Well, EPA looks at that definition with

varying angles, depending on what specific regulation they're
dealing with, but generally, yes.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Ms. Wright.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN WRIGHT:

If you take what's classified by

the State as the large systems and you're talking about, that
better than half of them are really small systems, then if you
broke out the violations within that group, do you find the
smaller systems creating the higher violations?
MR. ROGERS:

Yes.

In fact, we did that, and what we
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found is that -- In fact, we looked at, for example, systems
between 100 and 200 and between 200 and 300 because we felt
size-wise they're all about the same, the only difference is who's
regulating, and we found a three to four times higher
noncompliance rate in the smaller than the larger, and I think
what that relates to is the ability of the local health
departments to enforce.

•

So there's a lot that can be done in terms of obtaining
compliance short of these big financial expenditures, and I would
like to get into that because I have some figures that I would
like to present to you on that, but yes, we did find that to be
the case.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I do want to point out to the

members that we are not going -- I want to finish this hearing
before lunch, and lunch may start at 1:00, but let's keep that in
mind.

All right.
MR. ROGERS:

Again, the compliance statistics you just

saw dealt only with those requirements that were in place during
'88, '89.

They do not include any of the new organic, chemical,

contaminants that went into effect in January or any of the new
requirements that are being developed.

Clearly, when those come

into being those compliance rates are going to get even worse, and
there has been a lot of effort by EPA and the state put into
developing the regulations and standards, but very little in terms
of addressing the financial impact of those on not only the local
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regulating agencies but the small water systems themselves.
The reasons for low compliance, and others have given
you their perspective, but we would like to give you ours.

Some

of them are comparable, but others are a little different.

The

question, of course, is why do we have the disparities of
compliance between the large and the small.

In fact, we looked at

the other category besides bacteriological and we see pretty much
the same ratio, and there's no one answer but there is a variety
of reasons which I think are pretty much as follows:
First of all, and perhaps for most, is the fact that the
small water systems, by their very nature, are harder to regulate
because they do generally lack adequate financial resources to
make improvements or to do the more expensive monitoring.

They

usually lack sophisticated management or technical capabilities.
They frequently simply do not understand what's required of them.
No one has explained the regulations to them in a manner that
they understand.
The second reason is that local health departments in
almost all cases lack the resources necessary to provide adequate
surveillance, enforcement, follow-up, information, and what have
you, to some lesser degrees, but yet, certainly present is that in
some counties drinking water is simply not given a high priority
by the local governing body compared to other local programs.
There's no pressure to do so.

There's no consequences of not

doing it.
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In some counties, and we have observed this, there's
been a reluctance on the part of the local district attorney to
prosecute violators due to other pressing issues, and they've
given some of these low priority, and in a few cases there's a
lack of technical expertise at the local level to deal with some
of the complex contamination problems, and while the department

•

attempts to provide this assistance there are certainly some major
resource constraints.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

So you were saying that's just in a

few cases?
MR. ROGERS:

Yes.

In some cases, but not -- All of

these factors, and maybe a few more in various combinations appear
to be the reason for the lack of compliance.
Out of respect to some of these specific committee
questions, the first one was your question of how workable is AB
2158 and would it result in a more efficient regulatory program,
and in our opinion AB 2158 as currently drafted is not workable.
I think some of the concepts are good.

•

I think it's going in the

right direction, but there are some deficiencies in that that we
saw.
First of all, it's not specific with respect to what
parts of the law could be delegated, and this lack of specificity
could lead to substantial inconsistency throughout the state.
You've got 50 entities making various determinations of what they
want to enforce and what have you, and the fee concept was
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deficient in that there was no way of assisting the more rural
counties.

In other words, urban counties with larger systems

would do very well by the imposition of local fees, but most of
the non-urban counties would suffer.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. ROGERS:

As Ms. Wright point out.

Yes, and under AB 2158 as drafted, the

state, in my opinion, would very likely become responsible for
most of the small systems in the state while counties would take
over most of the very large systems.

That's certainly what I

would do if I were a local director given that option, and this
would, in my opinion, create some regulatory chaos because of the
number of problems with larger systems extending into more than
one county.

You've got problems with the Water Quality

Improvement Plans that are imposed on systems over 10,000 by AB 21
that the state would be implementing, and there's a variety of
reasons why, in my opinion, that would create some major problems.
The second question was, does the current program
adequately regulate small water systems, and if not, why not, and
I think our answer to the first part of the question is clearly,
no, it does not adequately regulate small water systems, and I
think we've given you what we felt were some of the basic reasons
for that.
I know Mr. Connelly's not here, but I suspect he was
interested in this question:

"What were the results of the AB

1803 sampling program for small water systems?"
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I'll take just a

moment and quickly give you -- Okay.
This is the current status of the small water system AB
1803 program which was a statewide sampling effort funded by the
Legislature to determine the presence of organic chemicals.
finished.

There's only a few results that need to be plugged in.

But basically we sampled close to 5,000 wells.

•

It's

found 306 were confirmed positive.

Out of that we

In other words, about 6.2% of

the wells sampled were positive, and this was the only area where
small water systems looked much better than the large systems.
Under the large water water program, we found about 19%
positive contamination rate, and out of the 6.2%, roughly
one-fourth of those exceeded the current drinking water standard
for that.

This information will be developed in more detail and

presented in a report later.
The next question asked by the committee was, to what
extent is the high noncompliance rate in the small systems a
result of the failure to enforce the Safe Drinking Water Act by
local or state agencies versus the lack of financial resources by
the small systems to make improvements.
It's a very good question because when we talk about the
lack of resources we definitely have to divide it into the two
parts, the lack of resources by the regulating agencies and a lack
of resources by the small water systems themselves.

To answer

this question we did attempt to analyze the compliance statistics
from both of these perspectives by separating the violations into
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what we would call high-cost items and low-cost items.

Correcting

actual MCL violations, for example, potentially is a high-cost
item in terms of putting in a treatment plant, drilling a new
well, or what have you, versus correcting monitoring violations as
well as the use of certified operators and installation of
cross-connection control programs were considered to be low-cost
items that would have little relative financial impact on the
small systems.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Mr. Rogers, Ms. Allen has a

question.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN DORIS ALLEN:

(Inaudible).

Has there been

any discussion on what is the source of the contaminants?
MR. ROGERS:

There has been, and there is, but it's

generally on an individual case-by-case basis.

In other words,

what we do when we find contamination of a system, we not only
require corrective action be taken, but we and the water utility
jointly try to determine the cause of that and correct the cause.
I think to a much lesser degree that occurs in the small systems
simply because of the lack of resources to investigate those
causes, and in some cases if you're dealing with some complex
hydrogeological or what have you, the lack of expertise.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

I guess my point would be, and

we're looking at financing, and we're looking at putting it out to
either the state general fund, obviously the EPA grant, or perhaps
the locals in terms of the water systems users.
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Again, I have

some concern that if we're finding high levels of contaminant,
wouldn't it be better to at least look to the source of that
contaminant?

To me it would appear that they should bear the

burden of not only of some of the costs but of also reduction of
some of that contaminant in terms of what's going into our water.
I realize it can't ever be totally done, but I should think there
should be some responsibility on the part of those who would want
to contaminate or do contaminate water.
MR. ROGERS:

I would certainly agree.

contaminants are natural.

Many of the

Those that are man-caused, particularly

the organic chemicals and so forth, pesticides
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:
MR. ROGERS:

Yes.

(Inaudible).

In a few cases we have that too.

Those instances where the Resources Control Board and the Regional
Water Quality Board are responsible for identifying and
investigating the extent of that contamination and the sources of
it, and we're given resources under 1803 follow up to do that.
So when we run into that kind of situation where we find
trichloroethylene or something in the water supply, we do refer
that information to the board, and depending on how their
priorities are, they do investigate where it might be coming from,
and eventually potentially you might find the responsible party
that you hit up on for some of the costs of that.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

You know, the importance of not

just finding the responsible party for the purposes of correcting
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the problem but hopefully they could find a better system of
correcting the problem prior to it becoming a problem.

In other

words, there could be better ways to deal with whatever it is
they're doing other than just allowing it to get into the water
systems.

I don't see how you can separate it out and not focus on

that when you're looking at financing, not just to find the
responsible party for purposes of having them do clean-up but for
purposes of correcting the problems at the source, which would
make sense to me.

I think it should be a very integral part of

what you're doing in looking for water quality.
MR. ROGERS:
that.

Well, I can't disagree philosophically with

Again, much of the -- For example, the bacteriological

contamination of the surface water, contamination not related to
sewage discharges, but you get a lot of it simply from Giardia,
and giardiasis, which occurs in all these surface waters, and we
have high incidences of giardiasis throughout the state.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

What's that?

MR. ROGERS:

Well, if you go backpacking or

It'

skiing some time up in the Sierras, and you come back and about a
week later you feel like hell and wish you could die, you've
probably got Giardia, and it's a pathogenic cyst, an organism,
that exists in most of the Sierra watersheds and so forth, but
it's the kind of thing, again, that can be removed by treatment
and is the primary reason why we're adopting the surface water
treatment rule.
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ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

That's something that just happens

in nature?
MR. ROGERS:

It's there naturally.

ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

Well, then, that's not something

you could probably correct, but other things and other sources
perhaps you could.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You know, I get the impression, I'm

sure I must be correct, that the smaller systems were more -- are
contaminated more with bacteria and the larger systems with
chemicals, and that is clearly understandable because the larger
systems are the urban systems, and there's industry, and industry
is contaminating the water with chemicals.

So the smaller systems

can more easily, much more easily, be cleaned up.

Because I know

chemical treatment is not happening very much, and so it seems to
me with a great deal less money, the smaller systems, the water
quality could be improved considerably.
MR. ROGERS:

Well, you're correct.

Where you get into

problems is that when you take the amount of money needed to
correct a bacteriological problem, whatever it is, what happens is
-- In comparison, it's smaller, but when you spread it over much
fewer people, like if it's only thirty or forty homes doing that,
then the cost per service connection comes out quite high.
We have had bond act projects which have run as high as
$30,000 per service connection to correct the problem, and so you
get into these economies of scale where you get very expensive per
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individual that you're helping, but you're right, and your
perception is correct.
Figure Nine:

What this shows is out of all the

violations, we identified, roughly, 6,100 violations, 85% of those
are of the low-cost variety, and 15% are what we would call the
high-cost variety.

So what we would conclude out of that, out of

those statistics, is that these violations, these 85%, are not due
to lack of financial resource by the water system but instead
represent a failure of the regulatory process, and by improving
the regulatory process we should be able to make substantial
improvements in the small water system compliance rate, but we
have to understand that that will get us down eventually to a
certain plateau, but whereas, if we want to get beyond that
plateau, we're going to have to deal with the financial
limitations of the small systems themselves, if we're going to go
beyond that particular point.
Your next question is, how will the new regulations
which are mandated by the state and federal laws affect the
ability of the small systems to come into compliance, and there
are many new standards and regulations which are coming on the
books which will clearly make it more expensive and more difficult
for small systems to comply.

In fact, many of those currently in

compliance are going to have a tough time staying in compliance.
This is a summary of the new standards and requirements
that will become effective before the end of 1991 as well as the
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estimated cost impact on California water utilities.

We've got

many new MCL's that are just on the books now and that will be on
the books before the end of this year, which are going to cost
anywhere from $50 to $90 million.

We've got new monitoring

requirements that could run from $10 to $20 million.

The

mandatory surface water treatment rule has a cost impact of about
$500 million.

•

That will be going to public hearing shortly.

The

mandatory disinfection and a disinfection by-products rules coming
out next year, we estimate, are going to run from $100 to $300
million, and the lead and corrosion rule from $10 to $15 million.
All of these, of course, will have an impact on all water systems,
but the smaller water systems will feel it the most because it's
tougher for them to be able to respond.
If we want to look at what impact-- I'd like to take
just two of them for example.

If we look at the DBCP, which is a

standard that we just adopted, it went into effect this year, and
look at that as to how it affects the various sized systems, we
can see for the large systems of 10,000 service connections you're
only looking at about $1.60 a month incremental increase, but for
small systems that are around 25 service connections you're
looking at about $85 a month per service connection incremental
increase on top of what they're already paying.

So definitely

one of these standards has a disproportionate impact on the very
low end of the small water scale, and similarly, for the surface
water treatment rule, it's a comparable thing, meaning that the
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impact on the very small systems is going to be about $91 per
service connection per month addition, and the very large, you're
down to about $3 a month per service connection.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
MR. ROGERS:

(Inaudible).

The blue portion at the very top there are

monitoring costs, and the yellow is the capital costs and the
other, the green and the red, are 0 and M and on-going operational
costs.

So maybe half, something like that, I would think.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
MR. ROGERS:

(Inaudible).

Well, no.

That was just for those systems

that would have DBCP in their water supply.
wells, ground water.

Now that's primarily

This would be for surface systems.

So

normally, you don't get DBCP and surface at the same source, but
yes, if we took all the 90 MCL's and added them up, and if some
system's so unfortunate as to have more than one contaminant in
its supply, they would be additive, yes.
Your next question asks for our recommendations for
improving the regulation of small water systems, whether the small
systems should be regulated by the state, and our estimates of the
costs of an adequate regulatory program, and unfortunately, we
can't give you definitive recommendations at this time, but these
are subjects that are going to be undergoing extensive review and
evaluation and will be covered in the legislative reports of which
I spoke earlier.

The following conclusions and concepts, however,

appear obvious to us, and we think will need to be addressed as we
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grapple with this small water system problem.
The first is it's clear that the present state statutes
are deficient with respect to state responsibility and oversight •
of small water system programs, and as EPA pointed out, this
accountability issue will have to be addressed if California's
going to retain its primacy.
Second, we would agree that counties need to have more
I

flexibility in determining the extent of their involvement in
small water system regulation, particularly smaller counties
should have the option of being able to reduce the size of their
program to meet local needs.
Third, some means has to be found to adequately fund the
regulation and enforcement of drinking water requirements if we
expect to improve the current situation, and I think it goes
without saying that we're going to have to grapple with the

•

problems of financial help to the small systems themselves .
To give you an idea of what that looks like, on the
current priority list where we have $75 million available and over
$900 million in stated needs, we're going to be able to fund or
provide funding assistance to about 8% of the applicants on that
priority list.

So the bulk of them are not going to be able to

get any help from the state in terms of that, and roughly
three-quarters of the systems that we will be helping are in fact
small water systems.
At this time we don't know precisely what it would cost
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to establish an adequate regulatory program for the small water
systems, but based on rough estimates, however, it appears that
something in the range of 150 person-years would be needed to
conduct an adequate program at the local level.

Currently, it's

estimated that the counties are devoting about 40 person-years to
drinking water, so you're looking at a shortage of roughly 100
person-years or roughly three times the size of what effort is
being currently devoted to that to get them up to a minimal
acceptable level.
Your last question was, what are the options for
financing the small water systems regulatory program and for
assisting the small water systems, and that's one that we're
getting into.
The options for financing capital improvement and so
forth is a complex one that we will be dealing with extensively in
the AB 21 plan.

In fact, we will be doing some contractual work

with financial consultants to explore all the different
possibilities and options that might be available, so we prefer to
defer that question until we have better information.
With respect to funding the regulatory program, it
basically comes down to two options, and that is the use of a
tax-based general fund, an imposition of service fees on the
regulated community, or some, perhaps, combination thereof.

Many

states currently that I'm aware of through our state associations
either have or are considering an annual water permit fee or some
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similar fee to partially support the drinking water regulatory
program.

I think there's about a dozen states now that have gone

that particular direction.
In California, the regulation of the large water systems
is primarily supported by the state general fund.

There are no

state general fund dollars used to support the regulation of small
water systems, and I want to correct some of the previous
statements with respect to use of the federal grant.
We do receive about a little over $2 million per year in
federal grant support, half of which is used to support the local
small water system programs.

In fact, last year, 52% of our

federal grant was used to provide technical and enforcement
assistance to county health departments to support the small water
systems program.

The remaining part of that is used to support a

lot of the state regulatory efforts, the development of
regulations and requirements and those kinds of things which
affect both large and small systems, and only a portion, a small
portion, of it is used to actually cover what I would call
permits, surveillance and enforcement activities.

The large

majority of small water programs, as was pointed out, are
supported by fees, and certainly I think that's an inequity, as
you pointed out earlier, and I think we would agree that the large
systems are getting a 100% free ride from the regulatory
standpoint, and perhaps they are the ones who are in the best
position to pay, where the small systems, who are in the least
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position to pay, not only pay fees to

r

also

the large systems, I mean taxes
regulatory ef

rt

, so t

rt at the local

re

some disparity there that we hope can be

ressed

ri

deliberations.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Are you planni

on work

Costa to further develop his bill?
MR. ROGERS:

Well, that was going to be our

rti

t

here.
That concludes our testimony, and we do look

rward,

fact, to working with the committee, Mr. Costa, yourself, or
whomever may be involved in this thing over the coming year to
address these many complex aspects of this overall problem.
would like to see it solved.

We

We think people in this state, if

they go skiing or traveling or hiking ought to have assurance
the water is safe wherever they go.

Whether it s wor

$4 or $5 million to bring that last 2% into
public poli

issue that I'm not prepar

All right.

ance

11

s

to answer

we would look forward to working with you on
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

i

t.

Thank

very much.
Question?
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA.

Two qui

tions.

One, you said you're not prepared to answer
terms

that 2%, but again, I ask you as I
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t

earlier to try

to give us some indication as a
is

lieve

serious do

popu

l
r

ina

0

to secure

tion has sa

thin

i

use of fees or general
and general fund

state how

t

t

li

mean, is i

I

r

em

other health issue that we
restrictions,

ffi

1

through the

on of both fees

em a ni

2% of the

water?

MR. ROGERS:
public health of

all,

Well, first

cial,

can't

I

ically, as a

i

the

who drink water from a small

ic

that the people

tern should get less health

protection than those who drink water from a large public system.
're entitl

It seems to me

to

same

t

ree of protection,

but we're faced with three options, none of which are particularly
attractive.
systems.

ing lesser standar

One is
bot

That wou

y ignore the

would be to s
and not worry

it.

third would be,
assistance pr

•

r me as a health

, some

r

ram, a

problems also.

That s sort

know that

I

re s no

Personal

, I

1

The second

we are now.
n ia

its own political

ink we

t.

ry ef
i

I

The

ic works

answer

the best compliance we can,
earlier, substant

whe

of a

ficial.

're not in compliance

t

t

r the small

ovements in our

rt to get

in, like I said
iance rate, and I

think we can get, as near as I can tell

obab

80% or 9 % compliance rate in

re we run into

smal
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get an

the real hard core problems where we can't go any further because
the small systems themselves just simply can't respond, and I
think we ought to at least get to that point if we don't go any
further than that.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Following up on your statement,

then, and the chairperson's comment, we would certainly be willing
in the course of the next month or so to sit down with you folks
as well as the county officers, the task force, and the committee
staff here, to work on making changes in a piece of legislation
that would be acceptable to you and to -- or hopefully would be
acceptable to you and to attempt to address that 85% to 90% that
you speak
MR. ROGERS:

Well, we would be interested in doing that,

and one of the points, I believe, Ms. Wright brought up earlier
deals with consolidation, and to me consolidation is the key to
survival for many of these small water systems.
Under a bill that we have been working with Assemblyman
O'Connell on, the next Safe Drinking Water Bond Act, would in fact
create financial incentives for consolidation, and I think as
these new requirements come into being many of these small systems
are going to not worry so much about their local home rule and
instead try to fi

ways to deal with it, and I think we would

like to see physical consolidation where possible.
not possible
consolidation

Where that's

consolidation of management structures,
rat

There's a number of things that can
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be done to ease the impact on these small systems, and I think we
do need to work in that direction.
CHAIRWOMP.N TANNER:

All right.

you very much.

Our next witnesses are Gary Carozza, who is Director of
Environmental Health in Fresno County, and Ken Stuart, President
of the California Conference of Directors of Environmental Health.
Mr. Carozza was the gentleman who requested that Mr. Costa carry
I

the bill in the first place; isn't that right?
MR. GARY CAROZZA:
members.

Good morning, Madam Chair and

My name is Gary Carozza.

I'm the Director of

Environmental Health from Fresno County, but regardless of whether
my name's attached to it or not, it was the Board of Supervisors
who instructed me.

I don't make policy decisions in Fresno

County.
But we were asked to prepare some legislation that
addresses the issue that your committee is discussing today, the
inequities.

Unfortunately, the 2% we're talking about is

relative, depending on where you live.

Two percent of the state's

population is a rather small, possibly insignificant, number in

•

some people's minds, but in Fresno County some 90,000 people are
served by small water districts.
To speak to some of the other issues, I'll change my
presentation, and again, I thank you for the opportunity to come
before you.

The idea of consolidation works well in those areas that
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are urban.

Fresno County covers 6,000 square miles, from the

Pacific Coast to the Sierra Nevada's.

Many of these small water

systems are dispersed in their nature, serving very small
populations.

We have 435 small water systems under our authority

as a local health department.
To give

an idea of what we're concerned about, these

systems are complex in their nature because they make up not only
just people but they make up businesses, hospitals, complexes, and
the idea that you can break these things down by boards or issues

We have done a lot of consolidation within Fresno
County.

As a matter of fact, in the metropolitan areas in just

the last year we consolidated 19 large water systems to go
together with the City of Fresno.

So we are working on that end.

We also put in place very stringent standards for the
formation of small water systems, especially surface water
systems.

That speaks to the issue of treatment, such as

chlorination, which is an easy access for the treatment of surface
water.

It doesn't speak to the issue of ground water, which the

Southern San Joaquin Valley is quite dependent upon for its water
supplies.
With respect to compliance, and I want to tailor my
comments strictly to Fresno County but I think they'll be
transferable to many small counties, especially urban and rural
counties, we have 80

terns out
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435

t are out of compliance

today with the radiological standards you impos
from the federal standard.

We

28

terns

on the
or 6%, of

small systems that are out of compliance with or
MCL's.

ls
r

nic

Of those 28 systems, 5 are out of compliance

standard that was just adopted recently.

DBCP

We

obably close

to 10 more will come out of compliance, and we're not talking
about simple treatment.

We're talking about very cost

s

terns

over very small ratepayer groups.
In Fresno County, as I said before, we normally drill
wells to supply water, and those cost anywhere between $15,000 and

$20,000.

Some of the larger systems can go upwards of $50,000 to

$100,000, but the idea of treatment, not the small treatment, not
the chlorination or disinfectant treatment, but the chemical
contamination that's associated with ground water, removal can
range anywhere up to doubling the cost of that well, actually
surpass the cost of the well installation altogether, and whe

r

or not you can drill a new well, as some people propose, a

r

well, that might provide water for a short period
There's no assurance that that

11 continue to

t

ovi

safe

potable water.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

Ms. Allen has a

stion on

t.

On the MCL s, what did

f

or 28?
MR. CAROZZA:

Currently, we have 28

in MCL s for certain criteria.

terns

t

We have 44 others I d

't
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20

that have already shown detection limits below the standard, but
the standards are changing.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

Now, in that area of pollution,

wouldn't that be somewhat traceable in terms of where it's corning
from?
MR. CAROZZA:

Not always, and I appreciate your point.

In those areas where we can find an identifiable
responsible party, we do expend a lot of partnership efforts with
both the State Department of Health Services and the Regional
Water Quality Control Board.
contamination
ago.

t

We are talking about types of

were legally applied to soils many, many years

In the case of DBCP, a chemical that was legally allowed to

be applied to agricultural products, we now have some 600 to 900
acres in one area -- not just acres, miles, that are contaminated.
We've been able -CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Is it possible to clean that up at

all?
MR. CAROZZA:

No.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR

CAROZZA:

That will always be like that?

We live with the DBCP contamination.

We

all have to go into some wellhead treatment process if we continue
to expect to provide a potable supply of water, not just to the
small systems but now we're talking about a large water system
that serves some 300,000 people, that serves the City of Fresno.
TANNER:

So you will always have to treat it?
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There's no way to treat the soil for the problem there?
MR. CAROZZA:
is 80 years.

Well, the estimated lifespan, half-life,

Most of the wells exhibit well above the standard

that's currently adopted by the state and federal government.
CHAIRWOMAN:

That even sometimes -- In terms of looking

for liability, as you say that happened over a period of years
when it was very legal to do that, but in terms of trying to get
to the source of the problem, to treat it
MR. CAROZZA:

Right.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

But you're saying --That's one

case.
MR. CAROZZA:
that.

Other cases we do extend the energy to do

Like was mentioned by the state health department

representative, Mr. Rogers, DBCP is a widespread problem.
We have some point-source problems.

I hate to use that

term, but we can identify an individual contaminant and trace it
back to some industrial practice.

There, again, many times the

industrial practices that we're allowed to take place many years
ago have now allowed for a widespread contaminant, plume.

Now the

assessment of costs to replace that, or reclaim that, is very
difficult.

There, again, we look to wellhead treatment, and

having the industry, if we can, identify and assign those risks to
shoulder some of the burden for wellhead treatment.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That would seem reasonable to me,

especially if it -- As you say, if some present type of process is

-75-

going on that is contaminating, whether legal or illegal, it is
still contaminating the water with those MCL's, but if it's still
contaminating the water, I would think with present practice it
could be dealt with.
MR. CAROZZA:

And there are a number of programs that we

have installed with the assistance of the state and various state
agencies to forego any future contamination.
What we're dealing with now has worked its way down
through the system for many, many years.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAROZZA:

Thank you.

There are a number

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Bill has a question.

ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

I'd like you to, your county as

an example of others, touch on the question of whether these water
systems are

rat

as muni districts, as part of the general tax

base of the communities, or whether or not the actual costs of
running them are supported by A fee structure, that is, just paid
on the services a

pr

MR. CAROZZA:
addressing are
construction

associated

rted by the ratepayers for the
ilities, the maintenance of the facilities,

rator r

irements.

They're not normally

th what you would call an urban or incorporated area.

They're usual
serve a la

In most cases, the small systems that I'm

sical
t

any monitoring,

t only.

unincorporated areas or small communities that
r

ricu

ral area.
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ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

And so then the mandates that a

county would put on them or the state are actually factored almost
automatically into the rate base that is paid
MR. CAROZZA:

the water users?

That's where the problem comes, trying to

factor in those costs to the small ratepayers' base.

I think you

heard some information from the Legislative Analyst that the cost
of enforcement would be about $10.

•

What we're concer

what we're seeing, is that rate is going up every
~onitoring

about,
r, just the

costs alone, not the enforcement, forget the

bureaucratic side.

I'll get to that as I discuss what we've

committed in Fresno County to enforcement and oversight by the
local jurisdiction, but just to meet the new monitoring
requirements far exceeds the ratepayers' ability to pay.
ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

There are many examples in our

county where we have both muni-operated and
water districts.

ivate board-operated

Most of them that operate best do their own

monitoring, regardless of state and federal standards, for their
own constituencies and seem to do it very adequately and are
responsive to the constituencies themselves regardless of other
standards.
MR. CAROZZA:

You're absolutely right, and that's under

normal circumstances, but what we're suggesting--

I

think what

we're seeing now is the resistance as we begin to have to monitor
for a wider variety of both chemicals and frequencies, things of
that natu e.
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Those costs themselves become barriers, because the
laboratory costs themselves, the transportation costs, are quite
heavy on the individual ratepayer.
You're right.

Most systems that have a board --

Unfortunately, most of the systems that I'm talking about don't
have an operating

rd.

They're operated by an individual owner.

They're a private system.

They may be a collection of owners of

properties that surround -ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

County ordinances could control

that and require board operation, couldn't they?
MR. CAROZZA:

They could, but it would mandate another

level of bureaucracy that we try to stay away from and encourage
good streamlined operations and force the dollars that could be
raised into operation and maintenance of the facilities.
ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:

There's some question in that.

In any event, I think the law we're discussing and Mr. Costa's
bill and a number of the mandates that we are putting on for
monitoring dif

rent things fall differently economically on many

areas, depending on the actual local operation of these
water-providing facilities.

Some are already incurring costs that

factor -- that flow into the tax base of the community.

Others,

where there are fees paid for the service itself, have almost a
built-in cost recovery mechanism.
systems, like
that almost by a

speak

The individual-operated

, we could almost have -- We could alter

1 juri

ictional mandate, couldn't we?
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MR. CAROZZA:

What would that provi

ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:
provide us, for

1 monitori

Bei

a moni

us in terms -ri

irement

r

-- It wou
1

r

ordinance that essentially were picked up by the users

the

water in those districts.
MR. CAROZZA:
Mr. Frizzelle.

They're already pi

They're already rnanda

ing

e costs,

as part

small

water system.
ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:
not work in a feasible manner.

And so if economically it does
They can also consolidate on an

economic reality basis on a local level?
MR. CAROZZA:

The consolidation issue is one that's very

difficult when you have systems that are separated by 30, 40, 50,
60, in some cases in Fresno County as much as a hundr

ASSEMBLYMAN FRIZZELLE:
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

I

Yeah.

les.

Well, that s true.

don't think

be

minimized.
When Ms. Wright raised the issue -anyone's against consolidation, and I'm

lli

in,

think

I

in 1

is

provide either some carrot or some punitive measures,

.e.,

stick, to encourage consolidation, but

must realize

some cases some of these districts are s

rat

miles.

I mean, it's not like an urban area where

si

tion to

t

n

ificant
have wa

r

districts that are adjacent to one another, and so, I mean, if
have got a water district up in Squaw Valley, not
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confused

with Squaw Valley in Tahoe but we have a Squaw Valley in Fresno
County

they're a lot different I might add.

I wont go into

details, but they're much different.

It's just a small foothill

community nestled in the mountains.

That has a, I don't want to

say primitive water

stem, but it's certainly not comparable to

metropolitan water districts, and you have another water district
outside of Huron.

You're talking about 70 miles distance.

Those

two areas have absolutely nothing in common with one another, and
to talk about trying to consolidate those two areas would make
absolutely no sense.
MR. CAROZZA:

Thank you, Assemblyman Costa.

I'd like to return, if I could, if there are no other
questions.
The Fresno County Board of Supervisors has encouraged
consolidation

re possible and will continue to encourage

consolidation by placing barriers to the formation of new systems
as much as possible as we serve populations that are away from the
urban centers.
Currently in Fresno County we've committed three staff
positions, three

11-time staff positions, at about $150,000 a

year which is

up of both fees and general fund contributions.

We have -- Approx

tely 60% of that cost as general fund and 40%

being related from fees.
We have two different
water and g

water systems.

s of systems, both surface
Our current fee levels are $189 a
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year for a ground water system, or a flat rate, and $253 a year
for a surface water system.

Given the very --

and requirements that we're being held responsi

new
e

r

tes
rcing,

we're seeking to double that fee and also try to encourage the
board to allow us to add three additional staff members, so six
staff members fully assigned to simply surface water and ground
water systems.
I think, as you've heard from various locations and
various presenters today, that competition for general
discretionary revenues at the county level is quite keen, and I
don't expect much success, which means they'll have to go through
a couple of choices, seek either higher fees to support my
enforcement costs or -- set my priorities differently in how I go
about enforcing the small water system at the local level.

That

will probably be the choice I'll make because, like most counties,
we set fees that are somewhat in balance with what the small
ratepayer basis can afford to pay.

We are sensitive to that, and

likewise our boards of supervisors are sensitive to that when we
raise our rates to cover the cost of bureauc
We are also, at the local level, sensitive to those
issues and try to keep those rates in line through many negotiat
talks with these types of individuals.
One of the questions that you had asked was why we
sought to introduce this legislation.

It was to provide the more

flexible division between public water system enforcement between
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the state and local agencies.

It's our intention to maximize the

efficiency of the limited resources which we've all spoken about,
both at the state level and at the local level.
Fresno County believes the state should retain primary
responsibility for

rcement over all public water systems.

This belief arises from the fact that drinking water protection
issues extend far beyond local boundaries and public concern and
trust as regards

water quality, expertise necessary to assess

health risks and evaluate the setting of standards, the cost of
regulatory compliance with existing and, as you've heard today,
proposed regulatory standards.
The Legislative Analyst reported up to 40% of all public
water systems demonstrated major violations.
to you Fresno County does not have that level.
bacteriological evaluations and fai

I'm happy to report
If we do add

res, we would probably

approach that 40% level, but we've had a very strict standard in
terms of surface water treatment and disinfection.
CHAIRWO!~N

TANNER:

Ms. Allen

s a question.

MR. CAROZZA:

I keep going faster and faster.

ASSEMBLYWO~N

ALLEN:

I just

You know, the

thought came to me as I was listening to some of the problems, and
I thought abou

consolidation and how it's going to be financed,

obviously, and I do know that some of these -- as you were saying,
the state should be responsible because some systems have an
impact on other

Small sometimes can have an impact in
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water quality on larger districts as well as in terms of surface
run-off or irrigation waters, especial
In the San

in smal

r districts

in, for instance, some of

groundwaters, seepage, etc., do end up goi

into major water

systems throughout the Delta or whatever and flow into some of the
larger districts down south, for instance, and some of

water

quality does have an impact, and they're more or less

•

interrelated .
I'm thinking that, as we were looking at this problem,
and I do know that we're looking in Orange County and some of the
other counties, L.A. right now, with some problems from the Mono
Lake area, we're recognizing water quality is a very, very serious
problem even to the larger users.
I

think if it could be incorporated into the bill or

into some of the things you're looking at for
correct it,

I

tions of how to

would think if you -- Say you were to consolidate in

the areas of monitoring, and during that peri

of time

I

think

that the causes are going to be extremely important in terms of
its coming into the rest of the water systems.

I

think if

could have it interrelated through health services
if you're doing monitoring it also helps the

li

terns, where
of water,

let's say, in larger systems because of the transfer

tern.

I

think that there probably could be some willingness on the part
some of the larger districts to take a look at it with you if you
were to

nclude them in the quality aspect of it, showi
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that if we can get the quality better, we might be better water
users down South in terms of quality.
I just can't see that they're divorced or separated
each other in total.

Some areas may be.

fro~

They may not have any

impact on any other system, but those areas that do have an impact
on other systems through transfer systems, I really think that
there should be some work going on by you with some of the larger
districts that are recipients of some of the water transfers.

I

think there could be the possibility, too, of help with some of
your financial burden.

I really believe the water systems are

that interrelated, that we can't just divorce ourselves from all
of them, small, large versus small.
MR. CAROZZA:

I appreciate your comments.

You're right.

We feel the same way, that all systems are interrelated,
regardless of where the source of the water.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:
negotiating.

I would hope you would do some

I mean, there's a serious problem in L.A. right now

with the water quality because of what they're finding through
their delivery system.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I'm going to request you, Mr.

Carozza, to try wrap it up.
MR. CAROZZA:

We believe

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. CAROZZA:
presently written,

That was not brief, Ms. Allen.

We understand that the bill, as it's
n't address some of the issues, but we do
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recommend that

Conference

work together

us

rectors

we
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think usi
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1
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issues
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1

I'd like

introduce Ken Stuart whom we've worked with.

We came

r

t

here.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
present the provisions

Yeah.

c.

Stuart

to

that bill that you've wo k

MR. KENNETH C. STUART:
I'm Kenneth

Mr. Stuart is

Honor

e

s

out
n se sion,

I'm the Director of

Sacramento County Environmental Management
I've recent
California

assumed

renee

conference r

rectors

esenting

health units

office

in

Environmenta

58 county

State

Cali
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Environmental Heal
the Water

Pre

in

Cruz Coun

t

rs

r

c

rnia
ane Eva
s

Force.
For the

renee

y

involved in analyzing the impact of the
Safe Dr

ing Water Act, in determini

-8

ra
the

ate

term effects they have on the approximately 9,600 small drinking
water systems in California.
apparent:

Two fact immediately became

One, noncompliance is no longer an option for small

system operators or owners, and secondly, failure to enforce is no
longer an option for local agencies.
As has been stated by Mr. Pardieck and Mr. Rogers and in
the 1989 Legislative Analyst's report and 1988 report by the
National Wildlife Federal, small water systems in the nation, as
well as in California, are not in compliance with state and
federal laws.

CCDH is willing to admit that the majority of small

water systems in California do not comply with the laws and feel
that now is the time to determine how to correct this situation
and implement the needed corrections.
At all local levels, compliance with water laws is
obtained through inspections, education, and mutual cooperation.
So enforcement is not always the primary correction mechanism.
Although a few programs are supported by general fund
moneys, most are fully or partially fee-supported.

The fees that

a system can afford to pay are usually not enough to cover the
cost of a comprehensive program so an inadequate number of staff
are employed and the job gets done as time allows.

Thus, the key

issue is how to obtain the funding to hire the additional staff
needed statewide to get the job done.
To emphasize this need here are current statistics:

The

state estimate of present county staff is forty five person-years.
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You may notice that that's a 27% decrease since Prop 13 was
implement

is prov

approximate

39% of

for annual i

systems in California.

additional manpower to enforce
Estimate of staff
act is an

•

rce the new safe drinking water

That comes to 106 staff statewide,

llion a year.

$5

11 result from

The second area at issue is what
implementation of
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can afford to
$5400
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r the additional moneta

a system
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improvements to comply

th the laws.
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faced in physical plan
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rs ago, r
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posed for statewide public water
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ttee

Drinking Water Supply, or

Public Water Supply Branch, began to work

relative

Estimate

present law is 70 statewide.

to

itional 36.

approximate

tions of

i

the Drinking

ified the issues
Water

last

on small

systems, discussed the need to consider restructuring authority
for the stat

de

ogram and identify the problem of lack of

regulatory resources to enforce the Safe Drinking Water Act for
small systems.
It was agreed in September, 1988, to move forward on
some parts of the issue paper and defer others for more study.
The areas we decided to move on were the need to add financial
assurance requirements for new water systems that's been
accomplished through Cortese's AB 2323; the need to define service
connections based on population at risk, and Assemblyman Sher has
generally agreed to carry this action; and, thirdly, the need to
modify the public water supply definition to, one, match the EPA
definition, which starts at fifteen connections and, two, put
state small water

terns of five to

rteen connections in a

separate category with different regulations mandated on local
programs to enforce with no r

irement to report back to the

state.
The areas that are deferred due to complexity and
significant time
the statewi

for study

lt with how to restructure

program in a fashion

resources into

r

tory pr

t meets primacy and, puts
ram for small systems.

When AB 2158 was introduced in March 1989, the CCDH
felt that it was an important mechanism with which to address some
recognized pr
not address some

ems but cou
addit

not

rt it as it did
1 issues we
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lt needed to be

resolved.
Our specific concerns with AB 2158 are, one, it does not
create an equitable division of responsibility between the State
Department of Health Services and local health officers.

Whether

intentional or not, it would appear that a local agency could
choose to deal wi

the lar

r systems or none at all and expect

the Department of Health Services to inspect other systems, and
secondly, it does not identify the actual funding mechanism, even
if it does include the concept

state supporting funds to local

agencies .

•

It is

lief of CCDH that AB 2158 could easily be

amended to include not on

beneficial points already in the

bill but the mechanism needed to start steps towards the water
systems' operati

compliance with state and federal laws,

addressing authority for pr
existing law before
The

and resources, and start with
changes.

nges t

i

Environmental Health in

rnia Conference

11

ration

Directors of

th the Department of

Health Services and Environmental Protection Agency would
recommend are, one, in the area of
law.

The

esent law mandates

must be handl

1

imacy or au

tween five

rnment.

re s

responsibility back to the state for minimum ef
oversight and no intervention by
Supply.
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fice

rity, present
199 connections
direct
rts.

Drinki

There's no
Water

Secondly, it fails to meet primacy.

What we would

propose is a local mandate of five to fourteen connections with
separate regulations.

They must stay local.

The state has

authority for all systems from fifteen connections and above.
The state may delegate authority for enforcement to local agencies
that request that delegation.

Any local agency requesting the

delegation must meet minimum program requirements to be developed
by regulation.
Third, local agency delegation option would go up to
10,000 connections.

We would propose five categories:

would have no delegation.
the five to fifteen.
only.

One, they

They would have to handle, in essence,

Two, they can do non-community water systems

Third category, they could handle, as they are right now,

between fifteen and 199 plus the non-community systems.

The

fourth category would be up to 500 connections and the
non-community water systems, and fifth, up to 10,000 connections
in a non-community water systems.
The 10,000 connections, we viewed as a maximum, that is,
where the recommended public health level of contaminants kick in
with AB 21.

My personal feeling is there will not be too many

counties that will take these larger options, but it does leave
them open.
The delegation would be made by means of a written
agreement with the annual review as to compliance with minimum
ram requi

s.

Monthly reports to the Office of Drinking
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Water Supply for an agency having delegation, state retains the
authority to intervene for systems in significant non-compliance,
and the state wou

perform t

entire program in counties without

delegation.

tern, local programs are largely fee supported

In the present

with some local general fund support.

•

about is resources.

area we wanted to ta

The s

The state program gets

approximately $2 million a year under the primacy and the rest
from the state general fund.

There is

rt

that $2 million per

year that does go to the small water program, as Mr. Rogers has
pointed out.
The inequities we see with the present resources is
those with the least resources pay for their own regulation.
Those with the most resources don't
systems pay twice.

pay the

to support the state program ef
What we pr
systems to cover t

ram.

local

annual

by

ion agreements,

state, who would perform the
th

for

on all water

counties operating under

In counties without del

In counties

would be collect

t fee plus state taxes

rts.

cost of state

the fee would be collect
entire pr

1

e is a statewi

delegation agreements.

•

Secondly, the small

1

tion agreements the fee

terns regulated locally.

If

local costs exceed the local collections, state funds, the excess
costs from the statewide
The

i

nia

lections.
renee
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rs of Environmental

Health does not wish to act as the inventor, protector, or
possessor of these suggested legislative amendments.

What we do

want to see is the small water systems operating in compliance
with the laws, adequate staffing to insure the protection of
public health, compliance, and a funding mechanism that's
equitable.
It is our belief that AB 2158 can be modified to meet
these needs, and we're willing to act, but we're willing to act in
whatever direction you deem appropriate.
That you for the privilege of addressing you.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

I'm going to ask the author to

comment on your recommendations.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
I would
suggestions that you

Thank you, Madam Chairperson.

est to Mr. Stuart and Mr. Carozza that the
just outlined from your task force's

meetings, that we, in a couple weeks, sit down with the committee
staff, both the majority and the minority consultants as well as
my staff and any

r interested parties here including the

Department of Heal

Services, to use that outline as a basis for

the changes we would

e in my AB 2158 and realizing that there

may be some concerns, whether by House Services or EPA, in terms
of the primacy issue or whatever, and see if we can then hammer
some language that we could then put before the committee in
January or February at the appropriate meeting date and bring that
up.

Then, hope

, we can work something out that will have the
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support of everyone who has indicated an interest thus far and go
from there.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Right.

legislation that we could make into a
Well

It might even be the kind of
Well, the committee

I wouldn't want to do that because you're not a member of

the committee.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
the small districts.

(Inaudible).

Well, it's a statewide proposal with

I mean, they're not all

located in one place.
With the larger districts we have to take into account
the impact that Ms. Wright and others have spoken of, and we don't
want to make -- I mean, that was obviously one of the real flaws
in the legislation as it was before the committee previously that
could shift the incentives and the emphasis, and that was not my
desire.

I think it was pointed out appropriately that that was

one of the weak parts of the bill, and it seems to me that the
outline that has

issued here gives us an opportunity to

address that and deal with it in a fashion that can, hopefully,
take care of that concern.
So we want to ensure that the -- Where protection is
being provided in the larger districts and it's being done in a
fashion that meets everyone's approval, that that continue.
don't want to to reinvent the wheel.
intent
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I mean, that's not my

We

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

(Inaudible).

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Oh, of course.

Sure.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Thank you very much, gentlemen.

Our next witness is John Gaston, who was formerly with
the State Water Resources Board and is now representing the
American Water Works Association, and you might, if you would, Mr.
Gaston, comment on the representations made that you heard and
about what the association feels about AB 2158.
MR. JOHN GASTON:

Thank you, Ms. Tanner.

I might suggest that, in the interest of time, the other
water utility r

esentatives join in and we make it sort of a

joint thing, and we could probably speed things up rather than
just having -CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right.

Jerry Jordan, California

Municipal Water Association; Dan Smith, Association of California
Water Agencies, and Meg Katzen, California Water Association.
MR. GASTON:

To start off, I am John Gaston.

I do

represent the American Water Works Association,
California/Northern Section, here today.
We are a utility representing all water utilities in
State of California, both large and small.

Not all utilities are

official members, but we do in fact represent large and small
utilities across

state despite ownership or background.

background, as you stated, is that I was with the
State Depar

Health Services from 1965 to 1983.
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I suppose

I am guilty as charged of having set up the current system that we
have right now.
It should be recognized that in 1976, when we first
received the grant money from EPA, those were the days before we
had invented DBCP and trichloroethylene and the surface water
treatment rule, and it was a simpler life for all of us, including
the water utilities.

•

At that time, a large series of discussions

were held with the counties as to what to do with the grant money
and how to funnel it down so that small water systems would
receive some of the benefit, and it was decided that the most
equitable and cost effective way was to put people to work at the
state level and have them work with the county health departments,
and that system is in place today.

It just isn't big enough to

handle the role.
Historical perspective as to how we came upon the
division of authori

at the 200 service connections area:

I

talked to my predecessor, who's been in the business since the
forties, and as best we can tell, there was an informal agreement
struck in the original legislation that said that 200 connections
represents a town of about 500 people a

the counties ought to

handle that, and that•s probably as good an answer as you're ever
going to get about that.
The question-- There's two main questions that I see
coming out of what we saw here today.

One is, how should the

program be administered in order to meet the concerns expressed by
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EPA, the State Legislative Analyst's Office, you folks, water
consumers; and two, where does the money come from?
I haven't had a chance to do an exhaustive study on the
county proposal.

I have looked at it briefly.

I think they're

going in the right direction in that there obviously has to be
support for the county systems.

They have an impossible job

trying to administer the program right now from a water utility
standpoint.

If I can put that hat on, however, I'm a little

concerned about the moving target aspects of delegation from one
county to another.

To speak on behalf of some investor-owned

utilities that Ms. Katzen r

esents, for instance, there's a very

responsible investor-owned utility company in California called
California Water Service that has 25 or 30 systems all over the
state and many of

less than 10,000 service connections.

I

could envision a situation where they were dealing with "X"
different counties and the state,
and where

i

where t

were,

ir administration costs might skyrocket as a result

of that kind of duplication of efforts.
My very frank initial reaction is that the State
Department of Health Services ought to
charge of community wate
thereby extendi

systems down to 15 service connections

their authority over

Mr. Rogers' pie chart is correct.
wisest

ing in terms of

has offices in rna

the ones who are in

t 2,700 more systems if

That would seem to me to be

economy of scale.

state alr

remote areas, or areas outside the center of
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the state, in Redding and Fresno and Stockton and etc., San Diego,
so it wouldn't require them to open additional offices.

It would

require some additional staff, and I don't have a real good handle
on how many more that would be, but several folks have talked
about the number of people.
Counties, then, should be asked or allowed to continue
administration of the noncommunity systems and the systems of less
than fifteen service connections, and perhaps, on an individual
basis, they could work out a deal with the state for some
additional supervision.

That would simplify things in terms of

EPA, I know, and it would also simplify things in many ways in
terms of the administration costs.
As to additional funds, undoubtedly there will be
additional funds required.

We have often thought at the utility

level that the state general fund was the best place to get the
money because safe drinking water benefits all people.
It's clear there's some inequities at the small systems
right now.

There's even further inequities at the investor-owned

utilities where they may pay a county fee, they pay a fee to the
public utilities commission for their own regu

tion and then they

would be able to pay a fee for service, so it's going to cost more
money to drink water, no doubt about it.
As to the fee basis, there's three points to be made:
one is that, assuming that we have 4,000 community water systems,
if we lump the existing 1,200 plus another 2,700 together and we
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need about $4 million, math tells you that's about a thousand
dollars a year

r system.

If you were to have a flat rate fee,

clearly many utilities could pay a thousand dollars.

Many would

have a great deal of problems.
The

tion, then, becomes whether you have a uniform

fee per utility, whether you have a

for-service basis.

In

other words, if a utility needs three weeks of help, you charge
them for three
combination

s on a billable time or some kind of a
reof.

I'm not famil

r enough with the fee

structures in other states to be able to say whether they work or
don't work or how well they work, but clearly there's a lot of
questions that

to be answered on that basis.

It's been touched on a little bit about that this
doesn't talk at all about the resource
water systems.
water

I

nk the truth of

terns,

matter is that many small

ing to find it's impossible to run, and they

sterns are

will simply go out
their

for fixing up small

t

business.

They're going to not abandon

're going to consolidate, and I think the

move that Mr. Costa talked about, about consolidation, is
excellent.

The utility community has pushed for regionalization

and consolidation for a long,

time.

That simply is the best

way to go.
There's many more issues here, but in view of the hour
and the

t we

some other people here, I'll turn it over to

them, and I'll be happy to answe

any more questions.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All Right.

Thank you.

Mr. Jordan.
MR. JERRY JORDAN:

Thank you.

We would agree that there's a large problem.

You've

seen that 40% of the violations occur in a very small percentage
of the utilities, and we don't represent any utilities that are
200 or less service connections, but as a result of all of you
legislators having problems with the small entities in your
districts we have to deal with the legislation which you think is
a good idea to deal with the problems that result from those small

•

utilities.
We think that the only thing that makes makes sense to
handle this problem is to have the state do the enforcement and
regulation for everybody.

As you might expect, we don't

necessarily agree that the way to do that is to charge a fee on
the larger water systems.

I think there's been some confusion,

especially in the Legislative Analyst's report.

The bulk of the

Department of Health Services budget goes to develop standards and
do things which apply to water systems regardless of size .

•

Large water systems really are self-regulating.
their own testing and their own monitoring.

They do

Nothing that has been

suggested in AB 2158 or by the counties would deal with the
problem of cost of monitoring these small systems.

That's still

going to be a big bulk of cost and a big bulk of the problem for
systems that have only 200 service connections.
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We think that it is perfectly justified to fund this
increased state level activity from the general fund, and we think
the problems.

that would solve a lot

We would very much oppose

the idea that county would choose which of the water systems in
the counties they wanted to regulate, and you'd have a mish-mash
all over the state, which seems to make no sense to us at all.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Smith.
MR. DAN SMITH:
Smith, r

Madam Chairperson and members, I'm Dan

resenting the Association of California Water Agencies.
rtrnent's recent study that Mr. Rogers summarized

The

r us today seems to support previous conclusions that there are
significant problems with many of the small water systems, but
since most

violations were in the area of monitoring I'm

still puzzled as to the scope of the problem as its relates to
situations,

re are real health risk problems, and I hope

re

that when that report's finalized, t

t perhaps it might clarify

t a little bit.

,

A basic

proper

unders

descri

everybody here today
causative
systems.

tors re
Part of

inherent in the
another s

if

it seems to me, is to be sure that we

J_

ict

the

ern, and as almost

re are undoubtedly multiple
iance problems with small

tive to

oblem undoubtedly in many cases is
oblems of scale faced by the small agencies, but
r lies in the regulatory mechanism.
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Mr. Rogers showed us very graphically that the large
systems regulated by the state have relatively few non-compliance
situations, while small systems regulated at the county level
have, relatively speaking, a large quantity of compliance
problems, and I have to assume a major part of that problem lies
in the way they are being regulated.
To me it seems very illogical for us to be looking at

•

proposals that would allow counties the option of shifting to
their regulatory purview agencies that are now not having
compliance problems.

In fact, it would seem to me that the shift

we should be looking at is the other way and that we probably
should be looking at proposals to reduce the regulatory
responsibilities of counties, and I suspect that the cost, whether
it be by funds, by fees, or by taxes, will be less to the people
of California.
The funding factor is the other question we've talked
about a lot today:

how are regulatory activities going to be

funded, and how are we going to pay those costs?
we want to keep t

•

possible.

Quite obviously

cost to our member agencies down as much as

Therefore we would support the proposal of having the

total cost funded through the general fund, and since you don't
get into the cost of setting and collecting fees, again, the cost
to the people of California will be less.
Funding alternatives that will be considered
appropr

e

will require a great deal of policy consideration,
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not only by the Legislature and administration but also by the
esent.

organizations that many of us r

So we can determine what

alternatives we can or can not support.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
Smith.

I'm going to ask you a question, Mr.

In the testimony we've heard today it seems to me that the

small counties have a certain kind of contamination.
yeah, the small

I mean,

terns, and the larger systems often are

contaminated with

cals.

You know, the ground water in the district that I
r

resent, which serves over a million people, is contaminated

with chemicals

So it seems to me that contradicts some of your
're saying, well, apparently, most of the

testimony where

is with the small systems and the larger systems are

contaminat
taking care

themselves, and a great deal of money is being

spent by the state

federal government on the larger

terns.
MR. SMITH:
lar

t

to,

r s

think that was Mr. Jordan that talked

I

terns paying, is what I

think he was referri

to defer to h

I'd
MR. JORDAN:

Well, I'm not exactly sure, but there's a

difference between having a contaminated well and being in
v

tion.

r

terns, by and large, are not in violation

even though they may own some contaminated wells, whereas the
small
toring r

, as we hea
i

today, are in violation even of the

s.
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CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:
MR. SMITH:

Okay.

I think, too, he was referring to the fact

that the larger systems are doing and incurring substantial costs
in monitoring their systems, that perhaps at the local level that
isn't happening.
Going back, the -CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

•

MR. SMITH:

Sorry I interrupted you .

That's okay.

Going back to how the funds

for this program might be raised, I think all I can really say at
this time is that for our association to recommend that our
constituents support any of the alternatives to the general fund
would require that we be able to see some trade-offs for our
members.

Number one of those, of course,

protection of public health.

would be improved

We also would want to see some

benefits to our member agencies in the way of meaningful help in
meeting water quality objectives.

I think that's kind of a long

way to say what might be said in short, that we'd like to see that
it's a necessary part of finding a solution that works to solving
real problems.

We look forward to working with this committee,

Mr. Costa, the department, other organizations, and interested
parties on this issue.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER: All right.

Thank you very much.

Ms. Katzen.
MS. MEG KATZEN:
Water Associ

Meg Katzen, representing the California

ion.
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As Mr. Gaston

reference to, we are an association

of investor

r

companies in California.

We have about 75

members, f

are small water systems, water utilities

under 200 service connections.
li

I

confidence none
violation, but

to sit here and tell you with absolute

our association members are in any sort of
't know that to be the case.

I

to be too repetitive of previous

me ani
speakers, the

ifornia Water Association does agree that water

consumers who

in their water from small water systems are

entitled to

same heal

entitled to from

protections that consumers are

rger systems, and we don't have any quarrel

with anyone here on that point.
We

some concerns

the county

ficers.

1

proposal advanced by

Specifical

in terms of

it would create some substantial pr
administrat

for water companies which have done just what has

been

re has

of small
water

terns

terns in several dif

basis,
enforce, there

rd a

n considerable consolidation

water companies in California where t

not quite so

the state

as Mr. Gaston ment

s i
i s

Additionally, what's

could, on a year-to-year

that a

nd about

re, choosi
next,

rent counties.

own

ovisions it wou
some one

so we wou
ki

r, giving those back to

discourage an attempt to go
ism on

-10

choose to

rt of the

counties.
I would like to make one comment on the issue of
consolidation.

There has been a lot of talk today about the

benefits to the small water systems and the small water systems
consumers of consolidation.
without its problems.

Consolidation, however, is not

It has been mentioned that a lot of these

small water systems do, at this point, require tends to bring
their water quality physical plant to a place that they would be
able to comply with the state's regulations in terms of
contaminants.
It's not limited to water quality, however.

The water

delivery systems of a lot of the small utilities are in very poor
condition.

Their reservoirs may be rotting.

The pipes may be

deteriorating, and it would be -- in considering the scenario.
I would encourage the members of this committee to look
at what kind of capital investment is involved and how to go about
asking either an investor-owned utility or, for that matter, a
public agency to take over one of these systems.

To be very

specific, there is a mutual water company in Northern California
which has approached an investor-owned utility and asked the
investor-owned utility to buy them.

They're looking at a minimum

of $2 million just in pipes, which for a base of less than 100
service connections so that that cost either has to come from the
existing consumers for that little system or it has to be spread
back over the ratebase that the company is already serving.
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It seems unfair to ask those ratepayers to pick up that
$2

llion just in

, let

water supply and dealing

addressing the matter of their

th the maximum contaminant levels

t

are being imposed by the state.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It's a very difficult problem to

, isn't it?
MS. KATZEN:

It really is, and so some of the

investor-owned utilities have been approached by the PUC, and the
PUC has said, "Will you please buy this little system over here, ..
it's a difficult choice for the investor-owned utilities.
don't know how

I

public agencies would handle that.

CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

You know, I'm r

nded -- I'm

hearing all of these difficulties and costs that we're talking
about.

I'm

of, in 1979, when I carri

environmental bill.
John Gaston, I

t

Collins,

Means, it was

killed,

t we monitor our drinking
r

bill, take out

Let s at least
s the

t

if you remember

t to

a member,

was

y very

water for a certain

Certai

costs in the bill was $50,000

b 11

said, "It's

there,

It was a bill to monitor

state

--

killed, total

tori

's sitting

lieve, was invo

drinking water in
it

Har

my first

t, Harvey,

we d

1

11, 11

We did.

s
I wonder

We passed a

, and that was in 1979.

,

't
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Mr. Costa, would you like to make some closing comments
and thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Yeah.

I'd like the witnesses here

-- I want to clear up a couple of things, to find out what's
negotiable and what's not.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

That

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Yeah.

~orried

me too.

You talked about the issue of letting the state take
over the entire essence of the program, and I can understand why
you might feel that way, and maybe that's the way we should do it,
but you said that the fees ought to all come out of the general
fund, or the program costs ought to all come out of the general
fund.
I'm wondering, and then that, I believe, was your
statement, Jerry, to paraphrase you, and correct me if I'm wrong.
Dan, you indicated that ACWA, the association you're representing
here this morning is concerned about the overall level of water
provided, whether you live in a large area or water-providing
agency or small water agency as defined under the law, ought to
have the same quality of water.
I think, Meg, you reiterated that.
It seems to me that you also opened the door, Dan, and
correct me if I'm wrong, but you would be willing to --or your
association would be willing to take in some considerations if
there were some trade-offs; is that correct?
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MR. SMITH:

I think I tried to state I would have to

have policy review of anything -ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Oh, I understand that.

I'm not

asking you -MR. SMITH:

-- even before we can adopt a position.

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

I'm trying to explore the parameters

of where you're at.
MR. SMITH:

Before we, as staff, can recommend any

alternative, we'd have to see value back to the members, but I
think when such an alternative gets back to our legislative
committee in perhaps a higher form, there would be a great deal of
discussion as to whether they'd want to
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Well, the bottom line is that we all

like to see if we could find a free lunch and look for the deepest
pocket, and in this case it's the state, but we all know that the
facts of life are that we don't have an endless source of revenue
and that the general fund is taxpayers' dollars just as well, and
the likelihood of correcting this problem by simply going to the
general fund and dealing with it in that fashion is probably not
very great.
I guess I'm more interested in

and we'll find this

out in the meeting, I guess, in a couple of weeks -- what sort of
trade-offs you're really talking about and what sort of balance
between maybe a fixed fee that could be provided, and you might
want to comment on this -- a fixed fee with maybe some additional
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state funds, maybe some sort of combination of the two.
MR. SMITH:

I don't have the answers now, but I would

like to point out, and I think it's probably one of those apple
pie things to point out, but basically no matter how this is
funded, it's funded by the people of California.
I'm very sensitive, as I think we all are who follow
this process, that the general fund is something hard to get a few
bucks out of for just about anything, but, on the other hand,
when you go to an alternate system, you have to look at the fact
that that creates higher costs for the people of California.

It

costs money to set a fee schedule and to collect it.
So I realize that getting money out of the general fund
is a hard bullet to bite, but isn't -- I know my members, their
objective is to provide an adequate level of water supply of the
best quality they can for the best price, and I think, overall,
that's a common objective we all have, is to meet the needs of the
people of California at the best price.
And that's why I wanted to make those comments about
supporting the general fund .

•

ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:
about trade-offs.

I know, but you still haven't talked

I mean, O'Connell has a $200 million bond

measure that tries to go to the other end of the solution in terms
of correcting these problems.

I have a $100 million deal with

various forms of treatment that includes ground water
contamination.

Both of those bond measures, should they be on the
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ballot next year, will not be at those levels because we'll have
to compromise down somewhere, as will all the bond measures.
So I mean, we come at the other end by providing
straight money to actually correct the problems that we deal with
it on that level, but you still haven't talked about specific
trade-offs.
MR. SMITH:

Well, I don't think any of us know yet what

those specific trade-offs would be.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Will you carry that back to your

association and their legislative committee?

We'll be interested

in knowing simply more than the general fund ought to take out -I mean, that's an easy statement to make, but that's not what the
legislation is ultimately going to look like.
MR. SMITH: I think the real bottom line is the real
health problems need to be solved, and I think that's what we want
to see.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

Well, that's why we're holding the

hearing.
MR. JORDAN:

I'd like to comment on that also.

There's another issue involved with taking the funding
out of the state general fund which is of concern, and it's
something that we've experienced, frankly, with our energy
utilities and the energy commission, and that is that once those
things go off of the state general fund, the legislative review of
the budget program and the growth of the budget programs becomes
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less severe than it does when those funds are competing with the
general fund for their activities.

So there's that issue also,

and certainly, we favor efforts to try and find systems to
clean up contaminated ground water supplies that don't involve
putting the burden on the people who just received the
contaminants.

•

Those are possible areas.

I think the other thing you would have to look at is
some sort of structured input from the utility industry into the
Department of Health Services if we're going to fund them.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Ms. Allen has a question, Mr. Costa,

and I would like to, before Ms. Allen has her question, give you
her question, I would like to say that I really feel that it's
important that we all do cooperate and put together a reasonable
legislation and, we have -- I hope that no one just puts their
feet against the wall and says no, this is something
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

It's still early.

Okay.

All right.

Ms. Allen.
ASSEMBLYWOMAN ALLEN:

My comments would be more directed

--Mr. Costa was questioning Mr. Smith, and correct me if I'm
wrong, but what I was hearing you say was that -- not in so many
words, that the general fund, if it were to come out of there, I
think that we would really be looking at costs pretty closely.
I think there's another deep pocket person out there,
and that is the water user in large districts, and I think they're
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looked at many times as a deep pocket as well:

"Gee, we can

spread the costs, and so they should pay."
I agree with Ms. Tanner that it's a serious problem and
has to be dealt with, but I think, on the other hand, if I'm
reading you right, what you were saying is, "Hey, let's take a
look at the violators, and to what extent are those violations
happening."

There are violations showing up here when we look at

all small water districts, and not all violators and some to a
different degree, and when you're looking at costs and you set up
a bureaucracy and you're trying to spread the costs and you
include all the water districts and a bureaucracy to cover them
all, when all of them may not need that much supervision or
monitoring, I think what you're looking at is bringing the costs
back down and really saying, "Let's identify and target and
specifically look at the problems and the magnitude of the problem
districts by district in terms of violators."
I mean, you can narrow it down once you get to the
percentage of the violators.

The others aren't violating.

can assume things are going well there.

You

You can go back and take

a check, but I think what we're looking at is costs --You don't
have to do a cost for all of the small districts, but I think,
Meg, you've mentioned this too.

Many of them are working well.

So if we're talking costs and we're going to look at the
deep pocket of the taxpayer through general funds or the deep
packet of the water user through increased fees to spread the
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costs, I think you have to look at the costs very, very carefully
and specifically.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

All right.

Thank you.

Mr. Costa.
ASSEMBLYMAN COSTA:

I would just conclude by suggesting

that your staff and mine coordinate a meeting to use the task
force recommendations as a basis to begin, and that we do that
within the next couple of weeks, and that those interested parties
that want to participate should be included, and then, hopefully,
we can come up with something that everyone has had a chance to
comment on, work out the differences to the degree that we can,
and then I would like to come up with a bill before the committee
sometime in January or February of next year.

At that point we

can determine whether or not we've been able to iron out most of
the differences based upon information and the questions that have
been raised and the comments that have been made in this hearing
today.
I would like to also thank you once again, Madam
Chairperson and members of the committee that came here and your
staff, for putting the work together to make this a worthwhile
morning, and I think that the fruits of our labor will be in some
good legislation that we can deal with next year.
I want to thank you once again.
CHAIRWOMAN TANNER:

Yes.

I want to thank everyone who

has participated in this hearing and the audience who are here.
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it's a very important issue, and I believe that we will work
together and we will be able to work it out.
Thank you very much.

# # # # #
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BACKGROUND PAPER
REGULATION OF SMALL DRINKING WATER SYSTEMS
Interim Hearing on AB 2158 (Costa)
Assembly Environmental Safety & Toxic Materials Committee
October 17, 1989
II

BACKGROUND
In 1974, Congress enacted the federal Safe Drinking Water Act to
regulate public water systems and ensure that the water they distribute
for human consumption is safe, pure and wholesome. The federal law
allows states to regulate public water systems in place of the
Environmental Protection Agency if state drinking water law and regulations are at least as effective as federal law. To obtain regulatory
"primacy," a state must show that it has adequate legal authority and
sufficient resources to regulate public water systems as stringently as
would EPA.
In California, all public water systems that have five or more
service connections or that regularly serve 25 persons daily for 60 or
more days each year are regulated under state law. Responsibility for
regulating water systems is, however, divided between the State
Department of Health Services, which regulates public water systems
larger than 200 service connections ("large" water systems), and the
local health officers, who regulate systems smaller than 200
connections ("small" water systems).
Recently, this division of regulatory responsibility between local
health officers and the State Department of Health Services has been
sharply questioned by at least three separate sources. First, the
Legislative Analyst, in a nine-page report (see ATTACHMENT 1) published
as part of the Analysis of the 1989-90 Budget Bill, pointed out that
regulation of small water systems is clearly ineffective. Local health
officers are severely underfunded and understaffed, small water system
operators are frequently untrained and do not possess adequate expertise, and the costs of complying with the steadily increasing requirements of federal and state drinking water laws and regulations often
cannot be met by the small systems. Because of these deficiencies,
more than forty percent of all small water systems in the state are, or
have been, in violation of safe drinking water requirements.
Second, the Environmental Protection Agency, Region IX, concluded
in June of this year (ATTACHMENT 2) that the present structure of the
state's drinking water program does not meet the conditions for
regulatory "primacy" under the federal Safe Drinking Water Act. The
Act provides that "primacy" may only be delegated to a single state
a...-
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entity which must have ultimate authority to enforce the drinking water
laws against all public water systems. EPA concluded that the present
division of responsibility between state and local government in state
law contravenes this principle and must be changed. The State
Department of Health Services, in a reply to EPA (ATTACHMENT 3),
indicated in August that it does not disagree with EPA's legal analysis
or its conclusions.
Finally, Assemblyman Costa, at the request of the Fresno County
Environmental Health Officer, introduced AB 2158 (ATTACHMENTs 4 and 5),
the subject of this interim hearing. The bill proposes to make the
State Department of Health Services responsible for regulation of all
public water systems in the state, whether they are "large" or "small."
It allows local health officers, if they choose to become involved, to
regulate public water systems and to fund county regulatory programs
through fee revenues that will be imposed by the county or by the state
if the county does not do so.
REGULATION OF SMALL WATER SYSTEMS
There are about 1200 large water systems in California. The large
systems supply water to about 98% of the state's population - about 26
million people. The remaining 2% of the population is served by 4400
small systems. There are, in addition, about 5200 other water systems
that are regulated under state law because they serve an average of 25
persons for 60 or more days a year. These non-community water systems
are entities such as industrial plants with their own water systems,
schools, summer camps, trailer parks, restaurants and resorts. Since
the non-community water systems are almost all small water systems,
local health officers are responsible for regulating about 10,000
public water systems.
The State Department of Health Services' budget for its program to
regulate the large water systems is about $6 million a year. About $2
million of that comes from an EPA Safe Drinking Water Act grant.
County small water system regulatory programs are not funded by the
state. They rely on a mix of fees and county General Fund appropriations to fund their programs. Both the Legislative Analyst and the
State Department of Health Services believe that the county programs
are severely underfunded, although the precise degree of underfunding
has not been determined.
Public water systems, whether large or small, are required to
obtain permits to operate and must comply with the requirements of
state law and regulations. These requirements have become increasingly
difficult to meet because both EPA and the state have adopted
increasing numbers of regulations governing such matters as filtration
of surface water supplies and the maximum levels of contaminants that
may be present in water furnished the public. As the requirements have
become more and more complicated and costly to meet, many small public
water systems have found it increasingly difficult to remain in
compliance with safe drinking water requirements.
a_
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POLICY ISSUES
AB 2158 proposes to change the drinking water laws
two
ways. It restructures the drinking water regulatory program by
redefining the enforcement roles of the State Department of Health
Services and the local health officers. It also establishes the
principle that the enforcement of the drinking water laws at both the
state and local levels will be financed by fees imposed on public water
systems.
The bill poses three interrelated policy questions. While these
policy questions can be discussed separately, the resolution of any one
of them depends on how the others are resolved.
1)

Division of responsibility. What is the proper division of
responsibility between the State Department of Health Services and
local health officers for the enforcement of the drinking water
laws?
As pointed out above, under existing law the State Department of
Health Services regulates large water systems while the local
health officers regulate the small systems. There are at least two
problems with this. First, since the State Department of Health
Services is not authorized to step in and enforce the drinking
water requirements against small water systems when the local
health officer fails to do so, the division of responsibility
contravenes the federal "primacy" rule that states that a single
state entity must be able to enforce the law and regulations
against all public water systems subject to the federal Safe
Drinking Water Act.

•

Secondly, from the standpoint of effectiveness, it is clear that
the present division of responsibility is unbalanced. It gives
agency with the most expertise, the most manpower and the largest
budget - the State Department of Health Services - the less
difficult job - regulating the large water systems which have
staffs familiar with the drinking water requirements, the technical
expertise necessary to determine what should be done to meet the
requirements, and the financial wherewithal to pay the costs of
meeting the requirements. The local health officers, on the other
hand, are underfunded and understaffed and do not have the large
technical staff that the department does. They are given the more
difficult job of regulating many times more public water systems
which are unfamiliar with the drinking water requirements, often do
not know how to comply and even i f they do, do not have the
financial base to make the improvements needed to comply.
Precisely what the division of responsibility should be remains to
be determined. Various witnesses at the hearing have been asked to
comment on this point. At the least, it is clear that however
enforcement duties are divided between the state and local levels,
the requisite resources to carry out those duties should be made
available.
-
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2)

Financing.
financed?

How should state and county drinking water programs be

The state-level drinking water program is now almost completely
financed by General Fund appropriations and an EPA grant. The
financing of county programs varies by county but is generally a
mix of fee revenues and local general fund appropriations. While
the state program appears to be adequately funded, the same is not
true of the county program. The Legislative Analyst reported, for
example, that statewide there are 44 staff positions for 57 county
programs, an average of less than one full-time staff person per
county. Put another way, each county staff person would be
responsible for overseeing the operation of about 225 water
systems.
While it is not clear what m~n~mum staffing level is needed in
order to effectively regulate small water systems, it is plain that
additional resources are needed. Whether those additional
resources should be provided by General Fund appropriations or by
fees imposed on all public water systems remains to be determined.
AB 2158 in its current version is ambiguous on this point.
3)

Financing of small water system improvements.
The Legislative Analyst reported in January that about 40% of all
small water systems were in violation of drinking water
requirements. Because of this, the Legislature added supplemental
language to the 1989-90 Budget Act that requires the State
Department of Health Services to report on all violations of state
and federal drinking water requirements incurred by small drinking
water systems. According to the department, preliminary survey
information seems to indicate that the incidence of violations by
small water systems is probably higher than 40%.
The reasons for this high rate are not known at present. Part of
the problem may stern from deficient enforcement carried out by
underfunded, understaffed county regulatory programs. To the
extent this is true, decisions on the division of regulatory
responsibility between the state and local levels of government and
the proper financing of state and county regulatory programs will
go a long way toward reducing the incidence of violations.
It is likely, however, that many small water systems are in
violation of one or more of the drinking water requirements because
they do not have the financial base needed to make improvements to
their system, to treat water to remove or reduce concentrations of
contaminants or to seek alternative sources of water supplies that
require less expense to meet the drinking water requirements. In
cases where large expenditures are needed in order to operate a
small public water system in accordance with the standards that
have been promulgated by EPA and the State Department of Health
Services or that are now under consideration, a small water system
may simply not be able to afford the required improvements. Where
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this is true, an improved regulatory program, even if adequately
financed, will not solve the problem.
The state has traditionally assisted public water systems to make
capital improvements needed to comply with drinking water
requirements through the issuance of General Obligation bonds.
Since 1976, $350 million in drinking water bonds have been issued.
While this has made something of a dent in the problem, it is clear
that much more is required. The State Department of Health
Services has suggested that at least $1 billion is needed to bring
public water systems into compliance with the drinking water laws.
It will perhaps be something of an irony if an effective and
efficient regulatory apparatus is constructed and adequately funded
while assistance is not provided to small water systems that
require it in order to comply with the requirements of the program .
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